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Independent Auditors’ Report

To
The Members of
M/s. Prajay Holdings Private Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Prajay M/s Prajay
Holdings Private Limited (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), Loss(financial
performance including other comprehensive income), cash tlows of the Company and the changes in
equity of company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements
by the Board of Directors of the company.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our

audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
there under.

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standerds require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatcment.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the standalone

Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs(Financial Position) of the Company as at March 31,
2018, and its Loss(Financial Performance including other comprehensive income) and its Cash Flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following:

a) Interest accrued amounting to Rs. 7286.42 lacs (including Rs. 1361.60 lacs for the year), on
compulsorily convertible debentures (Note 27) has not been provided. This constitutes a
departure from the accounting standards. Accordingly had this interest been provided for and
capitalised to inventories as done in earlier periods, Inventories and current liabilities would have
been higher by Rs. 7286.42 lacs( Including Rs. 1361.60 lacs for the Year)

b) Included in short term loans and advances (Note 33) is Rs. 757.98 lacs which are outstanding for
long time. These advances being unsecured are unlikely to be recovered and full provision should
have been made. Accordingly had full provision been made, provision for doubtful advances
would have increased by Rs. 757. 98 lacs, net profits and shareholders’ funds would have
decreased by Rs. 757.98 lacs.

Our Opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
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2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2018
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i; The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts; e

iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For V. Ravi & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0064928

- L-/-’G"-’ o -
CA.Ravi .V
Place: Hyderabad N Partner
Date: 15.05.2018 e M.No: 202967
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph | under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our report of
even date to the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018:

1) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

situation of fixed assets;

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner, designed to
cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to
the size of the company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed
asset has been physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies
between the books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed,

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.
(a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals.

b) The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to books records
which has been properly dealt with in the books of account were not material.

The Company has granted loans to M/s Prajay Engineers Syndicate Limited (Holding company) of Rs.
1525.23 Lakhs parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied
with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 In respect of loans, investments,
guarantees, and security.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are
not applicable.

As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the company.

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books
of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Service Tax, Value added Tax, Goods
and Service Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in
arrears as at March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they become
payable.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, service tax,
value added tax, Goods and Service Tax outstanding on account of any dispute.

defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks but the Company has defaulted in repa i t dues
on debentures Rs. 7286.42 lacs for the period from 24.11.2012 to 31.03.2018.

H.O.:
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9) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

10) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the year. However Mrs. D. Hymavathi Reddy, one of the shareholders of
the company, has filed a company petition CP No.l 19/HDB/2018 before the National Company Law
tribunal (NCLT), Hyderabad Bench against Parent company i.e. Prajay Engineers Syndicate Limited and
made the company also one of the respondent. The petitioner made a complaint before the NCLT against
the company, the board, its functioning, appointment / resignations of directors of the board.

1) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act;

12) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

13) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

14) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

16) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon,

For V. Ravi & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0064928

CA.Ravi,V
Place: Hyderabad Partner
Date: 15.05.2018 M.No: 202967
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements of M/s Prajay Holdings Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the company as of and for
the year ended 31st March 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of Prajay Holdings Private Limited (“the Company) as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
cvaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”.

For V. Ravi & Co
Chartered Accountants
‘RN: 0064928

\

g | O
CA. Ravi.V
Place: Hyderabad Partner
Date: 15.05.2018 M.No: 202967
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Prajay Holdings Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018

Asscts
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Financial assets
Investments in subsidiary
Loans

Deferred tax assets (net)

Current asscts

Inventories

Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and bank balances
Loans

Current tax assets, gross

Other current assets

Total assets

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total equity

Non-current liabilitics
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings

Current liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Trade payables

Other current liabilities

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies

As per our report of even date attached

for V.Ravi & Co
Chartered Accountants
IGAI Firm Registration numhcr:rgﬂﬁ'&?i?%: f;‘*:\

) AR
V.Ravi
Partner
Membership No: 2029

,

Place: Hyderabud'
Date: 15.05. 2018

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note

15
16

ltod

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

2,706 4,512
218,232 218,232
598 598

758 510
222,294 223,852
1,569,984 1,583,092
89,143 84,876
9,462 7,147
239,243 243,209
7,373 7,373
270 270
1,915,475 1,925,967
2,137,769 2,149,819
12,821 12,821
325,025 328,441
337,846 341,262
1,701,112 1,701,112
1,701,112 1,701,112
39,810 49,087
59,001 58,358
98,811 107,445
2,137,769 2,149,819

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Prajay Holdings

_ Private Limited

o

P Haniketh Reddy
Director Director
DIN: 08094912 DIN: 08097168
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Prajny Holdings Privite Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2018
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements,
As per our report of even date attached

for V. Ravi & Co

Chartered Accountanis

ICAI Firm Registration number: 00,

L_/-(’_.-—/‘— =il
.Ravi
Partner

Membership No: 202967

ok

P.Haniketh Reddy
Director
DIN: 08094912

Place: Hyderabad

Date: 15.05, 2018

Note 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Revenue from operations 17 45,921 163,423
COther income 18 1,547 888
Total income 47,468 164,311
Expenses
Cosl ol sales 19 47,386 192,061
Employee benefits expense 20 340 -
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,690 2,353
Finance cosls 21 596 54
Other expenses 22 1,120 732
Total expense 51,132 195,200
Profit before tax (3664) (30889)
Tax expenses
Current tax - -
Deferred tax charge (248) (401)
Total tax expense (248) (401)
Profit for the year (3416) (30488)
Total comprehensive income for the year (3416) (30488)
Enrnings per equity share (nominal value of INR 10) in INR
Basic and Diluted (2.66) (23.78)
Summary of significant accounting policics w4

for and on behalf of thgBbard of Directors of Prajay Holdings Private Limited

\.cr“

o

P.P f@g

Director
DIN: 08097168




Prajay Holdings Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2018

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

a. Equity Share Capital

No, of shares Amount
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued
At March 31,2017 160,000,000 1,600,000
At March 31,2018 160,000,000 1,600,000
Equity shares of INR 10 each subscribed and fully paid-up
At March 31, 2017 1,282,051 12,821
Al March 31, 2018 1,282,051 12,821
b. Other equity
Reserves and Surplug

Parti Total

bantiuking Share Premium Retained Earnings
At March 31,2016 194 672 164,256 358,928
Profit for the year (30,487) (30,487)
At March 31,2017 194,672 133,769 328,441
Profit for the year (3,416) (3,416)
At March 31,2018 194,672 130,353 325,025

lod

Summary ol significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial slatements.

As per our report of even dale attached
for V. Ravi & Co
Charitered Accountants

1AL Firm Registration number: 0
i l:_/“/\/ =

v
v Ravi

Partner
Membership No: 202967

Place; Hyderabad
Date: 15.05. 2018

for and on behalf of tl

P.Haniketh Reddy
Director
DIN:; 08094912

drd of Directors of Prajay Holdings Private Limited

v

P.Purnima

DIN: 08097168

T
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Prajay Holdings Private Limited
statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31,03.2018
(Allamounts in Indian Rupees in Thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Operating activities

Profit before tax

Adfustnents to reconcile profit before 1ax to net cash flows:

Depreciation of tangible assels

Amortisation of intangible assets

Finance income (including fair value change in financial instruments)
Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instruments)

Working capital adfustments;
(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories
(Increase)/ decrease in loans
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables and other financial liabilities
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions
Increase/ (decrease) in other non financial liabilitics

Income tax paid
Net cash flows from operating activitics

Investing activities
Purchase/Sale of property, plant and equipment

Interest received (finance income)

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds / (repayment) from long tern borrowings, net
Froceeds / (repayment) from short term borrowings, net
Interest paid

Net cash flows from/ (used in) financing activities

Net increase / (deerease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 10)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 10)

Cash & Cash Equivalents INR 3,097 thousands in Escrow account (31.03.2017 : INR 3,097 thousands)

Summary of significant accounting policies lwd

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

for V. Ravi & Co for and on behalf of

Crhanered Aeccountants
ICAT Firm Registration number: 006

e S

V Ravi b
Partner '
Membership No: 202967

GAC

P.Haniketh Reddy
Director
DIN: 08094912

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 15.05, 2018

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2017

FFor the year ended
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Prajay Holdings Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All'amounts in Indian Rupees Thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

1. General information

Prajay Holdings Private Limited (the Company) is a private company domiciled & incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on Sep 05, 2006. The Company is engaged primarily in the
business of real estate construction and development of projects.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules
2015.

2.2 Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention and on an accrual basis,
except for the following material items in the statement of financial position:

® certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value;
* long term borrowings are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

2.3 Functional currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of our Company.
Functional currency of an entity is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates.

2.4 Operating cycle

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.
Assets:
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
c) itisexpected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d) itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting date,
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Liabilities:

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) itisexpected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

¢) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Current assets/ liabilities include the current portion of non-current assets/ liabilities respectively. All
other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current.

3. Significant accounting policies
3.1 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs can be estimated reliably, there is no
continuing management involvement with the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of taxes and
applicable trade discounts and allowances.

(1) Revenue from sale of land / plots is recognized in the financial year in which the agreement
to sell is executed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

* the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership;

 the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the land sold;

¢ the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

* it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company; and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.

(i1) Revenue from constructed properties (excluding service tax/GST) is recognized on the
“percentage of completion method”. The total sale consideration as per the agreements to sell
constructed properties entered is recognized as revenue only when the stage of completion is
20 percent or more when the outcome of the project can be estimated reliably. When it is
probable that total costs will exceed the total project revenue the expected loss is recognized
immediately.

Service tax / GST does not form part of gross revenue.
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Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has
been established.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on,
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

3.2 Cost of construction

Cost of constructed properties includes cost of land (including land under agreements to purchase),
estimated internal development costs, external development charges, constructions costs and
development/ construction materials, which is charged to the statement of profit and loss based on the
percentage of revenue recognized, in consonance with the concept of matching costs and revenue. Final
adjustment is made on completion of the applicable project.

Cost of Construction Contracts includes estimated construction costs and construction material, which is
charged to the statement of profit and loss based on percentage of revenue recognized measured by survey
of work performed as per accounting policy above, depending on the nature of the contract, in consonance
with the concept of matching costs and revenue. Final adjustment is made on completion of the applicable
project.

Overhead expenses comprising costs other than those directly charged to the jobs are distributed over the
various projects on a pro-rata basis having regard to the activity and nature of such projects.

w8
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
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3.3 Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the company’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

3.4 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.5 Taxation

Income tax expense consists of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is
recognized in equity.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences: the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit; differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly -
controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and
taxable temporary differences arising upon the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at
the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are

offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but
they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be
realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available agaj \}*{h‘ic ‘?Q\temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
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reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be

realized.
3.6 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which includes all
stock options granted to employees.

3.7 Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the
cost of that asset.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses upon disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognized
net within “other (income)/expense, net” in the income statement.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to
the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs and maintenance are recognized
in the income statement as incurred.

Items of property, plant and equipment acquired through exchange of non-monetary assets are measured
at fair value, unless the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or the fair value of either the
asset received or asset given up is not reliably measurable, in which case the asset exchanged is recorded
at the carrying amount of the asset given up,

Freehold land and buildings (properties) were carried in the balance sheet prepared in accordance with
Indian GAAP on the basis of carrying cost (cost model) on 31 March 2015. The company has elected to
regard those carrying costs of property as deemed cost at the date of transition. Accordingly, the
Company has not revalued the property at 1 April 2015.

Depreciation
Depreciation is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives

of propeﬁy,/p[m?%@?:ment as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Leased assets
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are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives. The depreciation expense is
included in the costs of the functions using the asset. Land is not depreciated.

Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors and which is an integral
part of a tangible asset, is capitalized as part of the related tangible asset. Subsequent costs associated
with maintaining such software are recognized as expense as incurred. The capitalized costs are amortized
over the estimated useful life of the software or the remaining useful life of the tangible fixed asset,
whichever is lower,

3.8 Inventories

[nventories are valued as under:

* Land earmarked for property development is valued at cost. Cost includes land acquisition cost,
registration charges and stamp duty.

e Constructed properties includes cost of land, premium for development rights, construction costs and
allocated interest and expenses incidental to the projects undertaken by the company,

3.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If
any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value in
use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of
assets (the “cash-generating unit™).

An impairment loss is recognized in the income statement if the estimated recoverable amount of an asset
or its cash-generating unit is lower than its carrying amount. Impairment losses recognized in prior
periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. Goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount
of an investment in an associate is not recognized separately, and therefore is not tested for impairment
separately. Instead, the entire amount of the investment in an associate is tested for impairment as a single
asset when there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate may be impaired.

An impairment loss in respect of equity accounted investee is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of investment with its carrying amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the income
statement, and reversed if there has been a favorable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.




Prajay Holdings Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

3.10  Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for
the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans

The Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans are charged to the income statement as and
when the services are received from the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Company is demonstrably committed,
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment
before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized as an
expense if the Company has made an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer
will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of other long term employee benefits is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and previous periods. That
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Re-measurements are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

3.11 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

3.12 Contingent liabilities & contingent assets

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a

resent obligation-in-respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
p gation-in-resp p

/ig " W

disclosure ig i

H\c‘g\




Prajay Holdings Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed
continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related
income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs,

3.13

Financial instruments

Initial recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on
initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issues of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

Non-derivative financial instruments

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held with a business model
whose objective to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows, and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it
is held with a business model whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Further in cases where the Company had made an irrevocable election based on it
business model, for its investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent
changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Investment in subsidiaries and associates
Investment in subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost in the separate financial statements.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.

v W
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4. Critical accounting judgements and ley sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the management
of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

The following are the areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements that the management has
made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Provision and contingent liability

On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies.
For contingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in financial
statements. Loss Contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed as
Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not
disclosed in the financial statements. Gain contingencies are not recognized until the contingency has
been resolved and amounts are received or receivable.

Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting. As at March 31, 2018
management assessed that the useful lives represent the expected utility of the assets to the Company.
Further, there is no significant change in the useful lives as compared to previous year.

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiary and associate companies

During the year, the Company assessed the investment in equity instrument of subsidiary and associate
companies carried at cost for impairment testing. These companies are expected to generate positive cash
flows in the future years. Detailed analysis has been carried out on the future projections and the
Company is confident that the investments do not require any impairment.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its investments in subsidiary companies
and associate companies as of April 1, 2015 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use
that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.
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5 Property, plant and equipment

Particulars lel_t and| Yyrniture and Computers Vehicles Total
Machinery fixtures
Cost
At March 31, 2016 7,016 723 10 1,616 9,365
Additions - - - - -
Adjustments - - - - -
At March 31, 2017 7,016 723 10 1,616 9,365
Additions - - - - -
Adjustments 202 202
At March 31, 2018 7,016 723 10 1,414 9,163
Accumulated depreciation
At March 31, 2016 1,996 224 - 280 2,500
Charge for the year 1,849 224 - 280 2.353
Less: Adjustments -
At March 31, 2017 3,845 448 - 560 4,853
Charge for the year 1,227 214 - 249 1,690
Less: Adjustments 86 86
At March 31, 2018 5,072 662 B 723 6,457
Carrying amount
At March 31, 2016 5,020 499 10 1,336 6,865
At March 31, 2017 3,171 275 10 1,056 4,512
At March 31,2018 1,944 61 10 691 2,706

Note

Capitalised borrowing costs

The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended March 31, 2018 was INR Nil (March 31, 2017 - INR

Nil).
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6

Investments

Non-current investments

Investments carried at cost

Unquoted equity shares

Investments in subsidiaries

2,18,23,190 (March 31, 2017: 2,18,23,190) equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each fully
paid up in Prajay Developers Private Limited

Total investments carried at cost
Total investments

Category-wise investments
Investment in equity instruments

Other disclosures
Investment in subsidiaries

Loans (Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Non-current
Security deposits

Current

Loans and Advances to related parties

Advance to Subsidiary

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

218,232 218,232
218,232 218,232
218,232 218,232
218,232 218,232
218,232 218232

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

598 598

598 598
152,523 146,129
4,284 4,243
82,436 92,837
239,243 243,209
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8 Inventories
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Land at Cost - .
Land and construction work in progress - at cost 1,569,984 1,583,092

1,569,984 1,583,092

9  Trade receivables
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for

payment

Unsecured,considered good 58,566 36,843

Doubtful R -
58,566 36,843

Provision for doubtful receivables - -
58,566 36,843

Other receivables

Unsecured,considered good 30,577 48,033

Total Trade receivables 89,143 84,870

10 Cash and bank balances
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Balances with banks:

- On current accounts 9,310 6,981
Cash on hand 151 166
Cash and cash equivalents 9,462 7,147

11 Other assets
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Non-current assets
Unsecured, considered good
Advances for Purchase of Land / development (a) 270 270

Unsecured, considered doubtful
Advances for Purchase of Land / development - S

270 270
Less: Provision against advances for Purchase of Land / development = -

270 270

s 7 rl@.{ C a
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12

13

Share Capital

Authorised Share Capital
16,00,00,000 (Murch 31, 2017 16,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

cach 1,600,000 1,600,000
Issued equity capital
12,82,051 (March 31, 2017: 12,82,051) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 12,821 12,821
Subseribed and fully paid-up
12,82,051 (March 31, 2017 12,82,051) equity shares of Rs.10 each 12,821 12,821

12,821 12,821
(a) Reconcilintion of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of
the reporting year

31 Mareh 2018 31 March 2017
Particulars . - -
No. of equity F— No. of equity Antount
shares shares

Qutstanding al the beginning of the year 1,282,051 12,821 1,282,051 12,821
Issued during the year - 7 - a
Qutstanding at the end of the year 1,282,051 12,821 1,282,051 12,821

(b) Terms { rights attached to the equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each. Each shareholder is eligible for
one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting except in case of interim dividend. In the event of
liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after

distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Particulars No. of equity | |% holding in the No. of equity | |% holding in the

shares held class shares held class
-Prajay Engineers Syndicate Limited 999,900 78.00 999,900 78.00
-White Stock Limited 282,151 22.00 282,151 22.00

Other equity

Share premium

Opening balance

Add: Premium on fresh issue
Closing balance

Equity Component of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures
Equity Component of Optionally Convertible Preference Shares

Retained earnings

Opening balance

Profil/(loss) for the year

Less: Transfers to general reserve
Closing balance

Total other equity

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

194,672 194,672
194,672 194,672
112,706 112,706
179,835 179,835
(158,772) (128,285)
(3,416) (30,487)
130,353 133,769
325,025 328,441
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14

15

Borrowings

Non-current Borrowings
Secured loans

Compulsorily Convertible Debentures

(held by White Stock Limited)
1.Compulsorily Convertable Debentures of 716265 nos with face value Rs 1,000
each carry interest rate of 10% p.a issued on 24th October, 2007 and 28th
February, 2008 with an option to convert in whole or in part within 8 years from
the date of issue of such Debentures into such number of fully paid- up equity
shares of the Company which is equal to the conversion price mutually agreed as
per applicable laws. If at anytime within 8 years from thé date of Issue, the
subscribers to such debentures do not exercise the right to conversion, the
Company shall compulsorily convert such debentures into fully paid up equity
shares of the Company at the expiry of 8 years.These Compulsorily Convertable
Debentures have been issued under Foreign Direct Investment guidelines as Issued
by Government of India/RBI from time to time latest vide RBI Circular A.P.(DIR
series) Circular No.20 dated December 14,2007 which classifies Compulsorily
Convertable Debentures as equity Instrument)

2.Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of 5,28,000 nos with face value Rs.1000
each carry interest rate of 11% p.a (net of withholding tax) issued on 24th August,
2011 with an option to convert into equity shares of the company at on the date
falling on the 8th anniversary of the first completion date.
[Secured by way of assignment of the receivables of the Gulmohar Project and value of unsold stock/debt
of projects Prajay Enclave, Prajay Windsor Park and Prajay Harbour City & repayable in 20 quarterly
installments of Rs.37 50 per quarter w.e.f. December 2013]
Less: Equity Component of CCD

Debenture Application Money

Liability component of Optionally Convertible Preference Shares
(1) 6,44,38,944 Series 'B' 0.01% non-cumulative, redeemable, convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each

(1i} of the above:

6,44,38,944 Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each are alloted as fully paid up to Prajay Engineers Syndicate Limited,
pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash,

(i11) Preference shares are convertible at the option of holders into equity shares of Rs 10/- each after the expiry of
10 years from the date of issue i.e. 20th October 2007 at par or in case of compulsorily conversion at a price of Rs
4000 (including premium of Rs 3,990) per Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each.

(iv) The preference shares are redeemable (if not previously converted into equity shares) at the end of 15 years
from date of issue i.e 20th October, 2007

Total non-current borrowings
Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Others

Other current liabilities

Advance from Customers

31 March 2018

31 Maveh 2017

1,244,265 1,244,265
112,706 112,706
1,131,559 1,131,559
105,000 105,000
464,553 464,553
1,701,112 1,701,112

31 March 2018

39,810

31 March 2017

49,087

39,810

49,087

31 March 2018

59,001

31 March 2017

58,358

59,001

58,358




17

18

20

Prajay Holdings Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Thousands, excepl shure data and where otherwise stated)

Revenue [rom operations

Sale of Constructed Propertics

Other income

Miscellaneous income

Cost of sales

Raw material and components/ Development and construction costs consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year:
-Land
-Constructed Properties
Add: Purchases/Development and Construction Costs
Less: inventory at the end of the year ;
-Land
-Constructed Properties
Sub total

Cost of raw material and components consumed :

-Development /Construction Costs

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Stalf welfare expenscs

Less:Allocated to Projects

31 March 2018

45,921

31 Mareh 2017

163,423

45,921

163,423

31 March 2018
1,547

31 March 2017
888

1,547

—tid)

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

1,583,092 1,691,373
1,583,092 1,691,373
34,278 83,780
1,569,984 1,583,092
1,569,984 1,543,092
47,386 192,061
47,386 192,061

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

2,068 5,206
132 288
159 439

2,359 5,933

2,019 5,033

340




Prajay Holdings Private Limited
Notes forming part of the finanecial stutements
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees in Thousands, excepl share data and where otherwise stated)

21 [inance costs

Bank Charges and others

Less:Allocated 1o Projects

22 Other expenses

Advertisements

Legal and professional |

Power and fuel

Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machincry
Vehicles
Others

Insurance

Travel and conveyance

Rates and taxes
Audilors” remuneration

Other general expenses

Less:Allocated to Projects

31 March 2018

31 Mareh 2017

596 54
596 54
596 54

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

¥ 15
142 180
3,211 3,469
3 13
66 35
319 56
53 64
197 192
250 60
120 121
39 99
4,400 4,304
3,280 3,572
1,120 732




Prajay Holdings Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

23. Earnings per share
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year,
Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity
Shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
Profit/(Loss) after tax attributable to shareholders in INR (3,416) (30,488)
Thousands
Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 each 12,82,051 12,82,051
outstanding during the period used in calculating basic and
diluted EPS
Earnings per Share ( Basic & Diluted) (2.66) (23.78)
Notes:

(1) Dilution in EPS on account of 0.01% redeemable convertible non — cumulative

preference shares has not been determined as the terms of preference share
subscription agreement indicate that they are convertible or redeemable based on the
option exercisable by the subscribers, which is not presently ascertainable.

(2) Dilution in EPS on account of compulsorily convertible debentures has not been
determined as the terms of the debenture subscription agreement indicate that the
number of equity shares to be issued against each debenture shall be decided within
eight years from the date of issue. The conversion ratio/price, as of balance sheet date
has not been decided.

24. As stated in Note 3.1(ii) for recognizing profit on projects, stage of completion is determined as a
proportion that project costs incurred for the work performed bear to the estimated total costs. Further, as
stated in that note expected loss on projects is recognized when it is probable that the total project costs
will exceed the total project revenue. For this purpose total project costs are ascertained on the basis of
project costs incurred and costs to completion of projects on progress, which is arrived at by the
Management, based on current technical data, forecasts and estimate of net expenditure to be incurred in
future including for contingencies ete., which being technical matters have been relied on by auditors.
Further, in respect of certain properties where sale agreement has been entered with parties even though
money has not been received as per stipulation in the contract, the Company has recognized revenue and
debtors as management is confident that it shall be able to realize the sale proceeds.




Prajay Holdings Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All'amounts in Indian Rupees Thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

Land

Inventories of constructed properties | include land admeasuring 59 acres 21 guntas at
Maheshwaram, Hyderabad, Andhra Pradesh for which the company has received approval vide
letter no.15903/HADA/GH/2007 Dated 08.10.2008 for development of Group Housing layout ,
subject to certain conditions which include mortgage / charge on certain dwelling units to
Hyderabad Metropolitan Development Authority (HMDA).

As the Company’s business activity primarily falls with a single business and geographical segmen
i.e., real estate development, and in India respectively, there are no additional disclosures to be
provided under Accounting Standard 17 “Segment Reporting”, other than those already provided
in the financial statements.

The liability towards the CCD’s held by M/s L.B.Hyderabad Investments Inc.LLC, Stands settled. The
entire CCD's were taken over by M/s White Stock Limited. Further fresh CCD’s were issued to White
Stock Limited. The Interest Liability on the old CCD’s from the date of take over, as well as on the
new CCD’s falls due for payment every quarter. The interest on CCDs from 24.11.12 to 31.03.18
amounting to Rs.7,28,642 thousands has not been paid or provided for in the books of accounts.

Trade Payables — Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises:

The Company has not received any memorandum (as required to be filled by the suppliers with the
notified authority under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006)
claiming their status as micro or small or medium enterprises.

Commitments and contingencies
There are no pending litigations that have an impact on the financial position of the comparny.

Value of Import of CIF Basis

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
(Rs. in Thousands)  (Rs. in Thousands)
Construction related equipment Nil Nil

and material —

31. Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

(Rs. in Thousands) (Rs. in Thousands)
Investments Nil Nil
Others Nil Nil

W v



Prajay Holdings Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

32.

33.

34.

35.

No.

Auditors’ Remuneration
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
(Rs. in Thousands) (Rs. in Thousands)

Audit Fee 120 120

For Other matters - i

Short-term loans and advances (Note 14) include advances given to suppliers, etc amounting to
Rs.75,799 thousands outstanding from earlier years. Due to long term involvement in projects, no

provision has been considered necessary.

Prior year comparatives

The figures of the previous year have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to conform with
the current year’s classification.
Mrs. D. Hymavathi Reddy, one of the shareholders of the company, has filed a company petition CP

119/HDB/2018 before the National Company Law tribunal (NCLT), Hyderabad Bench against Parent

company i.e. Prajay Engineers Syndicate Limited and made the company also one of the respondent.

The petitioner made a complaint before the NCLT against the company, the board, its functioning,

appointment / resignations of directors of the board. The matter is pending before the Hon’ble NCLT

and the company has authorised its directors to represent the company before the Hon’ble court and

make submissions, in the best interest of the stakeholders of the company,

As per our report of even date attached

For V.Ravi

& Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors Prajay Holdings Private Limited.

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Regn. No 0064928 XM
g

L/ '."1 Y

CA.V Ravi A\ o \ P.Haniketh Reddy P.Piirnima
Partner _ ! ; Director Director
Membership No:221185 / DIN: 08094912 DIN: 08097168

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 15.05.2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members Of
M/s Prajay Holdings Private Limited

Reporton the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Prajay Holdings Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its
Subsidiary together referred to as “the Group™) comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st
March, 2018, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafier referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafler referred to as
“the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
anditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
Audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial
control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumst w%*siEer‘t for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Holding Company has an adequ ré/im B ‘tﬁﬁlﬁ)‘lﬁfl
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controls system over financial reporting in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following:

a) Interest accrued amounting to Rs.7286.42 Lakhs (including Rs.1361.59 lakhs for the year), on
compuisorily convertible debentures (Note 27) has been provided for. This constitutes a departure
from the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, had the
interest been the for and capitalized to inventories as done in the earlier years, inventories and
Current Liabilities would have been higher by Rs.7286.42 Lakhs(Including Rs.1361.60 Lakhs for
the year)

b} Included in short term loans and advances (Note 33) is Rs.757.98 Lakhs due from two parties,
which are outstanding for long time. These advances being unsecured are unlikely to be recovered
and full provision should have been made. Accordingly had full provision been made, provision
for doubtful advances would have decreased by Rs.757.98 Lakhs.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for
the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2018, and their consolidated loss and their
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of one (1) subsidiary whose financial statements /
financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 2216.323 Lacs as at 3]st March, 2018, total revenues of Rs. 0(Zero)
lacs and net cash flows amounting to Rs. -0.05 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net Loss
of Rs. 0.918 lacs for the year ended 31¢ March, 2018, as considered in the consolidated financial statements whose
financial statements / financial information have not been audited by ‘us. These financial statements / financial
information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiary report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements / financial information are
not materiat to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our e't{ﬁ te~en the
work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements / fi /r;a@:j,qgf atton
certified by the Management. g
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, based on the comment in
the auditors’ reports of the Holding company, subsidiary company, incorporated in India, not required
to this company.

2. Asrequired by Section143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
boeks and the reports of the other auditors,

(c) That the repoits on the accounts of subsidiary company incorporated in India, avdited under Section
143 (8) of the Act have been sent to us by the other auditors, as applicable, and have been properly
dealt with in preparing this report.

(d) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant boeks
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

() In our opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph above, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting of the company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A.

{g) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
31st March, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports
of the other statutory auditors of its subsidiary company none of the directors of the Group’s
companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2018from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(hy With respect to'the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us;

B
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" There were no pending litigations which would impact the consolidation position of the Group,

it. The group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts including
derivative contracts.

iti. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred 1o the investor education and
protection fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India.

For and on behalf of
V. Ravi & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 00649285

CA. Ravi .V 7
Partner
M.No. 202967
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Place: Hyderabad
Date: 15.05.2018

H.O.:
B.O.:
B.O.:
B.O.:
B.O.:

#2-6-54, Circuit House Road, Hanumakonda, Warangal, Telangana - 506 001. 9652108456, 9980108589 (Office)

# 2-4-143, Ramnagar, Hanumakonda, Warangal, Telangana - 506 001, 0870-2577540, 9849235314

# 2-10-1712, Chaitanyapuri, Karimnagar, Telangana - 505 001. 0870-2253201, 8988313399

# 111, Royal Pavilion Apartment, H.No. 6-3-787, Ameerpet, Hyderabad, Telangana - 500 016. 9949107050

# 1-6-62/4, Station Road, Subash Naga, Mahabubnagar, Telangana - 509 001. 99894 15638, 0870-2445638



| V. RAVI] & CO.
C&\/ CHARTERED AGCOUNTANTS

vraviandco.ca@gmail.com

Amnexure A” to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of Prajay Holdings Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the company as of and for the
year ended 31% March 2018, we have andited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Prajay Holdings Private Limited (“the Holding Company) and its subsidiary which is companies
incorporated in India as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its agsets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our andit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls .over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
T
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary fto permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inkerent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding company and its subsidiary company which are incorporated in India has, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018,based
on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India™).

For and on behalf of

V.Ravi&Co & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0064925

l

Partner _
Membership nuniber: 202967

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 15.05.2018
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Prajay Noldings Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheei ns af 3151 March, 2018

Assets
Non-current agseis
Property, plant and equipment

Financial assels
Loans
Deferred tux assetls (not)

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and bank batances
Loans
Current 1ax assels, gross
Other current assets

Total assels

Equity and Liabilities
Equity

Equity share capital
Other cquity

Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Finangial Liabilities
Borrowings

Deferred tax Liabilities (net)

Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables
Other current liabilities

Total liabilities
Totul equity and liabilities

Summary of signilicant accounling policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial
As per our report of even date attached

for V.Ravi & Co
Chartered Accountants

. J\-.. e
o M Ravi
Partoer \
Membership No: 202967,

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 15.05.2018

{Allamounts in Indian Rupees in Theusinds, excepl share data and where otherwise Staied)

As ul As at
Note 31 Mareh 2018 31 Mach 2007
o 2,706 4,512
7 598 508
758 510

4,062 3,020

& 17.91,520 18,04,628

9 89,143 34,876
10 09,557 7.249
7 2,34,551 2,318,592
7,373 7.373

11 270 270
21,32,414 21,42,988
21,36,476 21,48,608

iz 12,821 12,821
13 3,23.710 3,27.218
3,36,531 3,40,03%

14 17,01,112 17,01,112
17,01,112 17,01,112

15 39,832 49,099
16 5%,001 58,358
98,833 1,07,457

21,36,476 21,48.608

lto5
slatemients,

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Prajay Holdings

2 Privale Limited

P.Haniketh Reddy
Director
DIN: 08094912

Director
DIN: 08097168




Prajay Holdlings Private Liynited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3151 Mareh, 2018
(AT amownts in Indian Rupees in Thousands, except shore data and where ollicrwise staied)

Revenue Irom operations
Other income
Totak income

Expenses

Cost of sales

Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and-amortisation expense
Finance costs

Other expenses

Total expense

Profit belore eax
Tax expenses
Currenl lax
Deferred s charge
Total 1ax expense
Profit for the year

Total comprebiensive inconwe for the year
Exruings per equity share (nominal vatue of INR 10y in INR
Bagic and Diluied

Summary of significant aceounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial siatements.
As per our report of even date attached

for V.Ravi & Co’

Chartered decountanss

-4](:1\.*;"".. .

Partner
Membership No: 202947

Flace: Hyderabad
Date: 1505 2013

Note
17
18

9
20

2]
22

Itos

for and on behalf of the Fo

ol

P.Haniketh Reddy

Director

DIN: 08094912

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2017

45,921 163,423
1,547 888
47,468 1,64,311
47,386 1,92,061
340 .
1,690 2,353

596 54
1,212 55
51,224 1,95,223
(3756) (30912}
(248) {401)
(248) (401}
(3508) (30511)
(3508) (30511)
Q.74 (23.80)

-of Directors of Prajay Holdings Private Limited

£

rhiima
Direster
DIN: 08087168




Prajay Holdings Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

a. Equity Share Capital

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
for V.Ravi & Co

Chartered Accountants

ICAY Firm Registration nulnbepe\?@fmm\ Q ]
E ; ' j‘:*x,/",' ‘?\“‘"'\, ; \ ((A{/
/ -

Ei

Membership No: 202967 DIN: 08094912

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 15.05, 2018

No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of INR 10 each issucd
At March 31, 2017 1600,00,000 16,00,000
AtMarch 31,2018 1600,60,000 16,00,000
Equity shares of INR 10 each subscribed and fully paid-up
At March 31, 2017 12,82,051 12,821
At March 31,2018 12,82,051 12,821
b. Other equity
Reserves and Surplus

)5 .t‘ L - ¥

Particulars Share Premium Retained Earnings Total
At March 31, 2016 1,94,672 1,63,057 3,57,729
Profit for the year (30,511) (30,51 1)
At March 31, 2017 1,94.672 1,32,546 3,27,218
Profit for the year (3,508) (3.508)
Baltance as of 31 March 2018 1,94,672 1,29,038 3,23, 710
Summary of significant accounting policies lto5

for and on behalf of the Bogrd of Directors of Prajay Holdings Private Limited

S A G { Qe
. S i R 1A
Ravi i P.Haniketh Reddy P.Pyrritma
Partner Director Director

DIN: 08097168




Prajay Holdings Privaie Limited
Statement of Consulidated Cash Flows for the year 2017-18

Operating activities

Profii before inx

Adjustments fo veconcile prafit before tax to vet cash Hows:

Depreciation of tangible assets

Amortisation of intangible assels

Finanee income {including fair value change in financial instruments)
Finance eosts (including fair value change in financial inglruments)

Working capiral odiustnients:
(Inerease) decrease in rade receivables
{increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in foans
{increase) decrease in other assels
Increase/ {decrease) in trade payables and other financial liabilities
Increasef (decrease} in other non financial liabilities

Income tax paid
Net cash flows from operating activitics

Invesiing nctivities
Purchase /8ale of property, plant and equipment

Interest received (finance income)
Net cash flows used in tuvesting activities

Financing activities

Procecds / {repayment) from fong term borrowings, net
Proceecds / (repayment} from short term borrowings, net
Interest pad

Net cash flows from/ (used in) Knancing sctivities

Net increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer nole 10}
Cashe and cash equivalents at ¢he end of the year (refer note 10)

Summary of significant accounting policies

As per our reporl of even date attached
for V. Ravi & Co

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration number: 0064925~ )

Ahle - 7 g
Y Ravi

Partner

Membership No: 202967

Place: Myderabad
Date: 15.05.2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial stalements,

(Al amounts i Indian Rupees in Thousands, except share data and where otherwise stuted)

For the year ended
31 Mirch 2018

For the year endedl
31 March 2017

(3756 {(30912)
1,690 2,353
596 54
(4267) (21194
13,108 108,282
4,041 9,304
(9267) 6,003
643 (77186)
2,788 (3206)
- {66)
2,788 (3272)
16 .
116 .
596 54
596 54
2,308 {3326)
1,249 10,575
9,557 7,249

Cash & Cash Equivalents INR 3,097 thousands in BEscrow account (31.03.2017 : INR 3,097 thousands)

lws

for and on behalf of the J

P Haniketh Reddy
Director
DIN: 68094912

ﬁﬁ Direciors of Prajay Holdings Private Limited

[}
[
pc(

P Putrtima
Director

DIN: 08097168




Prajay Holdings Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Ru pees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

1. General information

Prajay Holdings Private Limited (the parent company} is a private limited company domiciled &
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on September 05, 2006. The Company
together with its subsidiary (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Group” or “the Company™) is
engaged primarily in the business of real estate construction and development of projects.

Description of the Group

Subsidiary of the parent company is listed below:

Name Relationship | Country | Percentage of Percentage of
of ownership ownership
Incorpor | interests as at interests as at

ation | March 31,2018 | March 31, 2017

Prajay Developers Private Subsidiary | India 100.00 100.00
Limited (Formerly MVL Trading
Company Private Lid.)

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared and presented in accordance with
the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015.

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention and on an acerual basis,
except for the following material items in the statement of financial position:

* certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value;

* employee defined benefit assets/(liability) are recognized as the net total of the fair value of plan
assets, plus actuarial losses, less actuarial gains and the present value of the defined benefit
obligation;

* long term borrowingsare measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.,

2.1 Functional currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of the parent
Company. Functional currency of an entity is the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates.

2.2 Operating cycle

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal
opgrat-i-ﬁg-@;@p and other criteria set out in the Schedule IiT to the Companies Act, 2013,

™,




Prajay Holdings Private Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated finaneial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)
Assets:

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the normal operating
cycle;

b} it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

c) itis expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d) itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at Jeast twelve months after the reporting date.

Liabilitics:
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies arty of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

b} it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

¢} itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d) the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the Lability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Current assets/ labilities include the current portion of non-current assets/ liabilities respectively, All
other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current,

3. Significant accounting policies
3.1 Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) that are controlled by the Company.
Control exists when the Company is exposed to, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through power over the entity. In assessing
conirol, potential voting rights are considered only if the rights are substantive. The financial staternents
of subsidiaries are included in these consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. For the purpose of preparing these consolidated financial
statements, the accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to align them with
the policies adopted by the Company

For the purpose of preparing these consolidated financial statements, the accounting policies of associates
have been changed where necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the Company.,

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in full while preparing these consolidated financial statements. Unrealized
gains or losses arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the Company’s interest in the investee.

L4




Prajay Holdings Private Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)
Loss of Control

Upon loss of control, the Company derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-
controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit
arising on the loss of control is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. If the
Company retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the
date that control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as a FVTOC]
or FVTPL financial asset, depending on the level of influence retained.

The financial statements of all sntities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same
reporting date as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on31 March,

3.2 Business combinations and goodwill

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first time adoption, the Group has elected to apply
Ind AS accounting for business combinations prospectively from transition date i.e., | April 2015, As
such, Indian GAAP balances relating to business combinations entered into before that date, including
goodwill, have been carried forward.

The Company uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The
acquisition date is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer. Judgment is applied in
determining the acquisition date and determining whether control is transferred from one party to another,
Control exists when the Company is exposed to, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through power over the entity. In assessing
control, potential voting rights are considered only if the rights are substantive. The Company measures
goodwill as of the applicable acquisition date at the fair value of the consideration transferred, including
the recognised amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, less the net recognised amount of
the ideutifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. When the fair value of the net identifiable agsets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the consideration transferred, the excess is recognised in equity
as capital reserve. Consideration transferred includes the fair values of the assets transferred, liabilities
incurred by the Company to the previous owners of the acquiree, and equity interests issued by the
Company. Consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration,
Consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships.
Any goodwill that arises on account of such business combination is tested annually for impairment.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay
contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity, then it
is not re-measured and the settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, other contingent
consideration is re-measured at fair value at each reporting date and subsequent changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration are recorded in the consolidated statement of profit and loss,

A contingent liability of the acquiree is assumed in a business combination only if such a liability
represents a present obligation and arises from a past event, and its fair value can be measured reliably.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Company recognizes any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Transaction costs that the Company incurs in connection with a business
Comb_ina;ioll are expensed as incurred.

r{;}:{ % & f‘gg
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Prajay Holdings Private Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial staterients

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions with equity holders in their
capacity as equity holders. The difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.

3.3 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs can be estimated reliably, there is no
continuing management involvement with the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Revenve is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of taxes and
applicable trade discounts and allowances.

(i} Revenue from sale of land / plots is recognized in the financial year in which the agreement
to sell is executed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

* the Company has transferred to the buyer the si gnificant risks and rewards of ownership;

* the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the land sold;

* the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

* it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company; and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be
measured refiably.

(i1} Revenue from constructed properties (excluding service tax/GST) is recognized on the
“percentage of completion method”. The total sale consideration as per the agreements to sell
constructed properties entered is recognized as revenue only when the stage of completion is
20 percent or more when the ocutcome of the project can be estimated reliably. When it js
probable that total costs will exceed the total project revenue the expected loss is recognized
immediately.

Service tax / GST does not form part of gross revenue.

(i) Contract revenue from the construction contracts are recognized on “percentage of
completion method measured by survey of work performed” depending on the nature of the
coitracl. The revenue on construction contract is recognized only when the stage of
completion is 20 percent or more when the outcome of the contract can be estimated reliably.
When it is probable that the total cost exceeds the total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognized immediately.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has
been established.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is acerued on,
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is

¥




Prajay Holdings Private Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial

asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

3.4 Cost of construction

Cost of constructed properties includes cost of land (including land under agreements to purchase),
estimated internal development costs, external development charges, constructions costs and
development/ construction materials, which is charged to the statement of profit and loss based on the
percentage of revenue recognized, in consonance with the concept of matching costs and revenue. Final
adjustment is made on completion of the applicable project.

Cost of Construction Contracts includes estimated construction costs and construction material, which is
charged to the statement of profit and loss based on percentage of revenue recognized measured by survey
of work performed as per accounting policy above, depending on the nature of the contract, in consonance
with the concept of matching costs and revenue. Final adjustment is made on completion of the applicable
project.

Overhead expenses comprising costs other than those directly charged to the Jobs are distributed over the
various projects on a pro-rata basis having regard to the activity and nature of such projects.

3.5 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases,

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of
relevant Jease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increase, such increases are recognised in the year
in which such benefits accrue, Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

3.6 Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the company’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Exchange differences on monetary items are
recoguised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

£

3.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acqﬁisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,

which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or

sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended.uge or sale.
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Prajay Holdings Private Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financinal statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Al other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.8 Taxation

Income tax expense congists of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is
recognized in equity.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences: the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit; differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and
taxable temporary differences arising upon the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at
the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
Labilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and
they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax
enfities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and
liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that if is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realized,

3.9 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS™) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is caleulated by dividing the profit or loss attributable fo ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which includes all
stock options granted to employees.

3.10  Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the
ac -_z-is' ion of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and other costs



Prajay Holdings Private Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

directly atiributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the
cost of that agset.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses upon disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposat with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognized
net within “other (income)/expense, net” in the income statement.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to
the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs and maintenance are recognized
in the income statement as incurred.

Items of property, plant and equipment acquired through exchange of non-monetary assets are measured
at fair value, unless the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or the fair value of either the
asset received or asset given up is not reliably measurable, in which case the asset exchanged is recorded
at the carrying amount of the asset given up.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of property, plant and equipment as prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, Leased assets
are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives. The depreciation expense is
mcluded in the costs of the functions using the asset. Land is not depreciated,

Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors and which is an integral
part of a tangible asset, is capitalized as pait of the related tangible asset. Subsequent costs associated
with maintaining such software are recognized as expense as incurred. The capitalized costs are amortized
over the estimated useful life of the software or the remaining useful life of the tangible fixed asset,
whichever is lower.

3.11 Inventories
Inventories are valued as under:

* Land earmarked for property developinent is valued at cost. Cost includes land acquisition cost,
registration charges and stamp duty.

» Constructed properties includes cost of land, premium for development rights, construction costs and
allocated interest and expenses incidental to the projects undertaken by the company.

3.12  Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financtal assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If
any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated,

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit {as defined below) is the greater of its value in
use and its fair value less costs to sell, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted fo their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit. For the purpose of

.
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Prajay Holdings Private Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of
asscts (the “cash-generating unit”),

An impairment loss is recognized in the income statement if the estimated recoverable amount of an asset
or its cash-generating unit is lower than its carrying amount, Impairment losses recognized in prior
periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. Goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount
of an investment in an associate is not recognized separately, and therefore is not tested for impairment
separately. Instead, the entire amount of the investment in an associate is tested for impairment as a single
asset when there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate may be trapaired.

An impairment loss in respect of equity accounted investee is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of investment with its carrying amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the income
statement, and reversed if there has been a favorable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

3.13  Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for
the amount expected 1o be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

3.14  Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost,

3.15  Contingent liabilities & contingent assets

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation

that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a -
present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or-

disclosure is made,

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed
continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related
_Income are recognised in the period in which the chan ge occurs.
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Prajay Holdings Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
{All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

3.16  Financial instruments

nitial recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on
initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price.
Transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or issues of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement
Non-derivative financial instruments
s Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held with a business mode!
whose objective to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows, and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sofely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

* Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it
is held with a business model whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Further in cases where the Company had made an irrevocable election based on its
business model, for its investments which are classified as equily instruments, the subsequent
changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

¢ Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost in the separate financial statements.
¢ Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.

4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the management
of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

Wi Y
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Prajay Hollings Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lalkhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
pertod, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements that the management has
made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

5.Provision and contingent liability

On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies.
For contingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in financial
statements. Loss Contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed as
Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not
disclosed in the financial statements. Gain contingencies are not recognized until the contingency has
been resolved and amounts are received or recejvable,

Useful lives of depreciable ussets

Management reviews the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting. As at March 31, 2018
management assessed that the useful lives represent the expected utility of the assets to the Company.
Further, there is no significant change in the useful lives as com pared to previous year.

W d
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Prajay Holdings Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Featements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

6 Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Plan‘t and| Furnifure and Computers Vchicles Total
Machinery fixtures
Cost :
At March 31, 2016 7,016 723 10 1,616 9,365
Additions - - - - -
Adjustments - - - - -
At Muarch 31, 2017 7,016 723 10 1,616 9,365
Additions - - - - -
Adjustments 202 202
At March 31, 2018 7,016 723 [0 1,414 2,163
Accumulated depreciation
At April 1, 2016 1,996 224 - 280 2,500
Charge for the vear 1,849 224 - 280 2,353
Less: Adjustiments -
At March 31, 2017 3,845 448 - 560 4,853
Charge for the year 1,227 214 - 249 [,690
Less: Adjustments 86 86
At March 31, 2018 5,072 662 - 723 6,457
Carrying amount
At March 31, 2016 5,020 499 10 1,336 6,865
At March 31, 2017 3,171 275 10 1,056 4,512
At March 31, 2018 1,944 61 16 691 2,706

Note
Capitalised borrowing costs

The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended March 31, 2018 was INR Nil {March 31, 2018 - INR

Nil).




Prajay Holdings Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Ftatements
(Albamounts in Indian Rupees in Thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

7 Loans (Unsccured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Non-current
Seeurily deposits

Current
Loans and Advances 1o related parties
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

8 laventories

Land at Cost
Land and construction work In progress - at cost

9 Trade receivables

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for
payment

Unsecured,considered good

Doubtful

Provision for doubtful receivables
Other receivables
Unsecured,considered good
Tetal Trade receivables
1 Cash and bank balances
Balances with banks:
- On current aceounts (a)
Cash on hand
Cash and cash equivalents
11 Other assets
Noen-current assets
Unsecured, considered good

Advances for Purchase of Land / development (a)

Less: Provision against advances for Purchase of Land / development

31 March 2018

31 March 2057

598 598

598 598
152,115 145,755
82,436 92,837
234,531 238,592

31 March 2018

33 March 2017

221,173 221,173
1,570,347 1,583,455
1,791,520 1,804,628

31 March 2018

31 March 2037

58,566 36,843
58,5;6 36,8:13
58,5;56 36,8:13
30,577 48,033
89,143 84,876

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

9,324 6,995
233 254
9,557 7,249
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
270 270
270 276G
270 170




Prajay Holdings Private Limnited
Nofes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Fratements
(Al amaunis in Indian Rupees in Thousands, excepl share data and where olherwise stated)
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Shure Capital

Authorised Share Capital

16,00,00,000 (March 31, 2017: 16,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10

31 Mareh 2018

31 Mareh 2077

cach 1,600,000 1,600,000
Issued equity capital
12,682,051 (March 31, 2017 12,82,051} cquity sharcs of Rs.10 cach 12,821 12,821
Subscribed and fully paid-up
12.82,031 (March 31,2017: 12,82,051) equily shares of Rs, 10 each 12,821 12,821

12,821 12,821
(a) Reconciliation of shares eutstanding at the beginning nnd end of
the réeporting year

31 March 201§ 31 Marceh 2017
Particulars - -
No. of equity Amount No. of equity Amount
shares shares

Oulslandmg at the beginning of the year 1,282,051 12,821 1,282 051 12,821
lssued during the year - - - -
Ouistanding at the end of the year 1,282,051 12,82] 1,282,051 12,821

{b) Terms / rights attached to the equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each, Each shareholder is eligible for
one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting except in case of interim dividend. In the event of
liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after

distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(¢) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the

31 March 2013

31 March 2017

Particulars No. of equity | |% holding in the No, of equity % hiolding in the,
shares held class shares held class
~Prajay Engincers Syndicale Limited 999 900 78.00 999,900 78.00
-White Stock Limited 282,151 22.00 282,151 22.00
Other equity
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Share premiwm
Opening balance 194,672 194,672
Add: Premium on fresh issue - -
Closing bajance 194,672 194,672
Equity Component of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 112,706 112,706
Equity Component of Optionally Convertible Prefecence Shares 179,835 179,835
Retained eamings
Opening balance (159,995) {129,484)
Profit/{loss) for the year (3,508} {30,511}
Legs: Transfers to general reserve - -
Closing bﬂg,la.lwehw.,___\ 129,038 132,546
323,710 327,218

g



Prajay Hoddings Privaie Lhnited
Notes forming part of e Consolidated Finaacial Fratements
(All amounts jn Indian Rupees |akhs, exeept share data and where otherwise staed)

14 Berrowings

Non-curcent Borrowings
Seenred losns

Compulsortly Convertible Debentures

{held by White Stock [imited)
1.Compulsorily Convertabie Debentures of 716265 nos with face value Rs 1,000
each canry interest rate of 10% p.a issued on 24th October, 2007 and 28th
February, 2008 with an option to convert in whole or in part within 8 years from
the date of issue of such Debentures into such number of fully paid- up equity
shares of the Company which is equal to the conversion price mutually agreed as
per applicable laws. If at anytime within 8 years from the date of issue, the
subscribers to such debentures do not exercise the right to converslon, the
Company shall compulsorily convert such debentures into fully paid up equity
shares of the Company at the expiry of 8 years.These Compulsority Convertable
Debentures have been issued under Foreign Direct Investment guidelines as [ssued
by Government of India/RBI from time to time latest vide RBI Circular A.P.(DIR
series) Circular No.20 dated December 14,2007 which classifies Compulsorily
Convertable Debentures as equity instrument)

2.Compulserily Convertible Debentures of 5,283,000 nos with face value Rs.1000
each carry interest rate of 11% p.a (net of withholding tax) issued on 24th August,
2011 with an option to convert into equity shares of the company at on the date
falling on the 8th anniversary of the first completion date.
[Secured by way of assignment of the Teceivables of the Gubmohar Project and value of unsold stockAdebt
of projects Prajay Enclave, Prajay Windsor Park and Prajay Harbour City & repayable in 20 quarterly
Installments of Rs.37.50 per quarter w.c.f. December 2013)
Less: Equity Component of CCD

Diehentitre Application Money

Liability compouent of Optionally Convertible Preference Shares
(i) 6,44,38,944 Series 'B' 0.01% pon-cumulative, redeemable, convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each

{ii} of the ahove:

6,44,38,944 Prefercnce Shares of Rs.10 cach are alloted as fully paid up to Prajay Engincers Syndicate Limited,
pursuant o 2 contract without payment being recejved in cash,

(i1i) Preference shares are convertible at the option of holders inte equity shares of Rs 10/- each after the expiry of
10 years from the date of issve i.e. 20th October 2007 at par ot in case of compulsorily conversion at a price of Rs
4000 {including premium of Rs 3,990) per Equity Shares of Rs 104 cach,

(iv) The preference shares are redeemable (if not previously converted into equity shares) at the end of 15 years
from date of issuc i.e 200h October, 2007,

Total non-current borrowings
15 Trade payables

Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Chthers

16 Other current linhilities

Advance fiom Customers

31 March 2138

31 Mhivreh 2017

1,244,265 1,244,265
112,706 112,706
1,131,539 1,131,559
105,000 105,000
464,553 464,553
1,701,112 1,701,112

31 March 2018

359,832

31 March 2017

49,099

39,832

49,099

31 March 2013

59,001

31 March 2017

58358

52,001

88,358

.
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Prajay Holdings Private Limited
Notes Torming pard of the Consolidated Financial Fiatements
{All nmounts in Indian Rupees Lokhs, exsept share data and whete olherwise sioled)

Reveaae from operalions

Sale of Conglructed Properties

Other income

Miscellaneous income

Cost ol sales
Raw material and components/ Development and construction costs consumed
Inventory af the beginning of the year:
Land -
-Conslructed Propertics
Add: Purchases/Developmeni and Consiruction Costs
Less: inventory al the end of the year :
-Land
~Constructed Propertics
Sub total

Cost of raw material and components consunied :

~Pevelopment /Construction Costs

Employee henelits cxpense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Stafl welfare exponses

Less: Allocated o Projects

31 March 2018

45,921

31 Mareh 2017

163,423

45921

163,423

31 March 2018
1,547

31 Mareh 2017
844

1,547

8388 |

31 Mareh 2018

31 March 2017

221,173 221,173
1,583,455 1,691,736
1,804,628 1,912,909

34,278 83,780

221,173 221,173
1,570,347 1,581,455
1,791,520 1,804,628

47,386 192,061

47,386 192,061
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
2,068 5,206

132 288

159 439

2,359 5,933

2,019 5,933

340 -

W

W



Prajoy Holdings Private Limited
Notes Jorming part of the Consolidated Financinl Ftatemenis
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, excepl shore dola nnd where otherwise stated)

11 Finance costs

Bank Charges and others

Less:Allocated to Projects

22 Other expenses

Advertisements
Legal and professional
Power and fuel
Repairs and maitenance
Flant and machinery
Vehicles
Others
Inswrance
Travel and conveyance
Raies and laxes
Audilors” remuneralion
Other general expenses

Less: Allocated to Projects

31 Mareh 2018

31 March 2017

396 54
596 54
506 84

31 Mareh 2018

31 Magreh 2017

) 15
142 130
3,211 3,469
3 13

66 35
319 56
53 64
197 192
250 0
120 121
131 122
4,492 4,327
3,280 3,572
1,212 755




Prajay Holdings Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

23. Earnings per share
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity
Shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
Profit/(Loss) after tax attributable to shareholders in INR (3,058) (30,511)
Thousands
Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 each 12.82,051 12,82,051
outstanding during the period used in calculating basic and
diluted EPS
Earnings per Share ( Basic & Diluted) (2.74) (23.80)
Notes:

(1) Dilution in EPS on account of 0.01% redeemable convertible non — cumulative

preference shares has not been determined as the terms of preference share
subscription agreement indicate that they are convertible or redeemable based on the
option exercisable by the subscribers, which is not presently ascertainable.

{2) Dilution in EPS on account of compulsorily convertible debentures has not beean
determined as the terms of the debenture subscription agreement indicate that the
humber of equity shares to be issued against each debenture shall be decided within
eight years from the date of issue. The conversion ratio/price, as of balance sheet date
has nat been decided.

24. As stated in Note 3.1(ii) for recognizing profit on projects, stage of completion is determined as a
proportion that project costs incurred for the work performed bear to the estimated total costs. Further, as
stated in that note expected loss on projects is recognized when it is probable that the total project costs
will exceed the total project revenue. For this purpose lotal project costs are ascertained on the basis of
project costs incurred and costs to completion of projects on progress, which is arrived at by the
Management, based on current technical data, forecasts and estimate of net expenditure to be incurred in
future including for contingencies etc., which being technical matters have been relied on by auditors.
Further, in respect of certain properties where sale agreement has been entered with parties even though
money has not been received as per stipulation in the contract, the Compauy has recognized revenue and
debtorg.réﬁ‘gﬁn{ riveqt is confident that it shall be able to realize the sale proceeds.
Eal
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Prajay Holdings Private Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)
25. land

Inventories of constructed properties ,  include land admeasuring 59 acres 21 guntas at
Maheshwaram, Hyderabad, Andhra Pradesh for which the company has received approval vide
letter no.15903/HADA/GH/2007 Dated 08.10.2008 for development of Group Housing layout ,
subject to certain conditions which include mortgage / charge on certain dwelling units to
Hyderabad Metropolitan Development Authority (HMDA).

26.  As the Company’s business activity primarily falls with a single business and geographical segrment
i.e., real estate development, and in India respectively, there are no additional disciosures to be
provided under Accounting Standard 17 “Segment Reporting”, other than those already provided
in the financial statements.

27. The liability towards the CCD’s held by M/s L.B.Hyderabad Investments Inc.LLC, Stands settled. The
entire CCD's were taken over by M/s White Stock Limited. Further fresh CCD's were issued to White
Stock Limited. The Interest Liability on the old CCD's from the date of take over, as well as on the
new CCD’s falls due for payment every quarter. The interest on CCDs from 24.11.12 to 31.03.18
amounting to Rs.7,28,642 thousands has not been paid or provided for in the books of accounts.,

28. Trade Payables ~ Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises:

The Company has not received any memorandum {as required to be filled by the suppliers with the
notified authority under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006)
claiming their status as micro or small or medium enterprises.

29, Commitments and contingencies
There are no pending litigations that have an impact on the financial position of the company.

30. Value of Import of CIF Basis

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
(Rs. in Thousands)  (Rs. in Thousands)
Construction related equipment Nil Nil

and material —

31. Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
(Rs. in Thousands) (Rs. in Thousands)
Investments Nil Nil

Others Nil Nil

N b




Prajay Holdings Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

32.  Auditors’ Remuneration
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
(Rs. in Thousands) (Rs. in Thousands)

Audit Fee 143 143
For Other matters - -
33. Short-term loans and advances (Note 7} include advances given to suppliers, etc amounting to
Rs.75,799 thousands outstanding from earlier years. Due to long term invelvement in projects, no

provision has been considered necessary.

34, Prior year comparatives
The figures of the previous year have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to conform with
the current year’s classification,

35. Mrs. D. Hymavathi Reddy, one of the shareholders of the company, has filed a company petition CP
No.119/HDB/2018 before the National Company Law tribunal (NCLT), Hyderabad Bench against Parent
company i.e. Prajay Engineers Syndicate Limited and made the company also one of the respondent.
The petitioner made a complaint before the NCLT against the company, the board, its functioning,
appointment / resignations of directors of the board. The matter is pending before the Hon’ble NCLT
and the company has authorised its directors to represent the company before the Hon'ble court and
make submissions, in the best interest of the stakeholders of the company.

As per our report of even date attached

For V.Ravi & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors Prajay Holdings Private Limited.
Chartered Accountants
ICA] Firm Regn.No:0064928 Y XW
/( ....... e reef ’ f' ? (\. J\PN
V. Ravn ‘ Haniketh Reddy P.Pdrnima
Partner g irector Director
Membership No:20 "QQ? \ DIN: 08094912 DIN: 08097168

i
-". L~y '\ r-;, .

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 15.05.2018
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Independent Aunditors® Report

To

The Members of

M M/S. PRAJAY RETAIL PROPERTIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of M/S. PRAJAY RETAIL
PROPERTIES PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”} which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and & summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information. {

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is tesponsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position}, Profit (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows of the Company and the changes in
equity of company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularilies; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
infernal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements
by the Board of Directors of the company, -

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is 10 express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on ou
audit. :

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made

there under.

VIJAYAWADA BRANCH ; ' BENGALURY BRANCH:

B.No.: 28-5-1, 2nd Floor, Syam Enciave, s #34,3rd Main, 2nd Block, 2nd Right,
Near Eagle Bar, Prakasham Road, Devasandra Main Road, Ayyappa Nagar,
Vijayawada - 520002, Andhra Pradesh. KR Puram, Bengaturu - 560036,

Email: camkrvid@gmail.com Emaik cablrmkr@gmail.com
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We conducted owr audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
standalone Ind AS financia! statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgiment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to desigd audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evalvating the overall
presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31* March,
2018, and its Profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the

changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the QOrder.
2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} T our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.




e} On the basis of the written representations received from the dircctors as on 31st March, 2018
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3 1st March,
2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Comparny and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
Our separate Report in “Annexure B,

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule

1T of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone Ind AS financial statements;

1. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts;

iit.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be {ransferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Madu K Reddy Assotiates
Chartered Accountalgl;s;\
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FRN: 0089928 %

Place: Hyderabad Partner
Date: 26.05.2018 M.No: 212128
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Annexure A” o the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 ander the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement® of our report of c\:en date to the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of
M/S. PRAJAY RETAIL PROPERTIES PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March 31,
2018:

In Respeet of Fised Assets
The company does not have any fixed assets as on reporting date.
In Respect of inventories

a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year at
reasonable intervals and in our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable,

b} In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the procedures
of physical verification of inventories followed by the management were reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

c) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has
maintained proper records of its inventories and no material discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification,

Compliance under section 189 of the Conipanies act, 2013

The Company has granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (jii) (a) to (C) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

Compliance under section 185 and 186 of the Companies act, 2013

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 In
respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.

Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued
by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
prowsmns of the Act and the Compan ies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to

VIJAYAWADA BRANCH :
D.No.: 29-5-1, 2nd Floor, Syam Enclave,

BENGAILURLU BRANCH
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Maintenance of Cost Records

The Company is not required fo maintain cost records pursuant to the rules made by the
central government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section {48
of the companies Act, 2013,

Deposit of Statutory Dues
a. Statatory dues for more than six months

The Company s regular in depositing of undisputed statutory dues including  Provident
fund, Employee’s state insurance, Income- tax, Service tax, Value Added Tax, Cess and
Goods and Service Tax any other statutory dues applicable to the company with tle
appropriate authorities. No disputed amounts payable in respect of statutory dues were
outstanding as at the last day of the financial year for a period of more than six months

from the date they become payable.

b. Dispute for Tax and duty

There is no dispute with the Income tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of excise, value added
tax regarding any duty or tax payable

Repayment of Loans or Borrowings

The Company has not borrowed any loans from Financial Institutions, Banks and debenture holders.
Utilisation of Money raised by Public Offer 2nd Term Loan for which they Raised

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
including debt instruments and term Loans.

Reporting of Frand

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees
has been noticed or reported during the year. However Mrs. D. Hymavathi Reddy, one of the
shareholders of the company, has filed a petition CP No.1 19/HDB/2018 before the Nafional Company
Law tribunal (NCLT), Hyderabad Bench against Parent company i.e. Prajay Engineers Syndicate
Limited and made the company also one of the respondent. The petitioner made a complaint before
the NCLT against the company, the board, its functioning, appointment / resignations of directors of
the board

Managerial Remuneration
No Managerial Remuneration paid to Directors during the year.
Compliance by Nidhi Company Regarding Net Owned Funds to Debt Ratio

As per information and records available with us the company is not a Nidhi Company.
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Related Party transactions

In our opinion, There are transactions. with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and
188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

Compliance under section 42 of Contpanies Act ~ 2013 regarding Private Placement of Shares
or Debentures

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review.

Compliance under section 192 of Companies Act 2013

The Company has not entered into any Non-Cash Transactions with Directors or persons connected
with him.

Requirement of Registration under 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

The company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934,

For Madu K Reddy Associates
Chartered Accountan
F.R.No.008992§“&

/.«—’
/

CA. Siva Kumar

Place: Hyderabad Partner
Date: 26.05.2018 M.No. 212128
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Anditor’s Report of even date on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of M/S. PRAJAY RETAIL PROPERTIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on (e Internal Financial Contrals ander Clause (i) of Sub-scetion 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {(“the Act”)

I conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the company as of and for
the year ended 31st March 2018, we have audited the infernal financial controls over financial reporting
of M/S. PRAJAY RETAIL PROPERTIES PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Companyy) as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Finaneial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and ervors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required gnder the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such contiols operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence abont the adequacy-of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.,

BENGALURU BRANCH:

#34,3rd Main, 2nd Block, 2nd Right,
Davasandra Main Road, Ayyappa Nagar,
KR Puram, Bengalury - 560036,

Emaii: cablrmkr@gmail.com

VIJAYAWADA BRANCH -

D.No.: 29-5-1, 2nd Fioor, Syam Encilave,
Near Eagle Bar, Prakasham Road,
Vijayawada - 520002, Andhra Pradesh.
Email: camkivid@gmail.com
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financinl Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
staternents for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain fo the maintenance of records that, in reasonabie detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as nccessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acguisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that cotrld have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporfing, including the
possibility of collusion or hinproper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial eontrols system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Conirols Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”,

For Madu K Reddy Asscciates
Chartered Accounfgnt:
FRN: 0089928 45

CA.Siva Kumar Reg o
Place: Hyderabad Partner
Date: 26.05.2018 M.No: 212128




Prajay Retail Properties Private Limited
Balance Slect as at 31st March, 2018

{All amounts in Indian Rupees, excepi share datg and where otherwise stated)

As per our report of even date attached

for Madu K Reddy Associates
Chartered Accountants .
ICAI Firm Registratiort ngﬁibt;

\4‘; ",_ - - z
CA.Siva Kumar fteddy.”

Partaer
Membership No: 212128

B

Place: Hyderabad
Dage: 26.05. 2018

As ai Asat
Pariiculars Note 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Assels
Current assets
Inveitories 5 04,62,957 94,62,957
Financial assels
Investments 6 11,065,394 10,4445}
Cash and bank halances 7 16,09,129 10,112,334
Others 8 8,66,27,471 8,66,90,987
Current 1ax assets, pross ‘ [,17.360 1,21,307
Totzl assets 9!83382g1 0 9&&8!036
Equily and Liabilitics
Equity ]
Equity share capital 9 S0LO0,000 50,00,000
Other equity 10 (1,48,50,497) (1,48,81,532)
Total equity {98,50,497) (98,81,532)
Curvent liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Other financial fiabilities 1 8,61,59,450 8,61,41,750
Othar current liabilities 12 2,20,,1 8,000 2,20,18,000
Current Tax Liabilitics 53,357 59,818
Total liabilitics 10,82.32,807 10,82,19,568
Total equity and liabilities 9,83,82.316 9,83,38,036
Summary of significant accounting policies . Ttod

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Prajay Retail
Properties Private Limited '

—~— I

fay Seit Reddy
Dvirector
DIN: 00291185

Sunit Sen -
Direcior
DIN: 91028417




{Prajay Reinil Propertics Privale Einied
Stadement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3151 March, 2318
(Al amownts in Indian Rupees, except shise data and where olierwise slated)

As per our report of even date attached
for Madu K Reddy Associales ..

Chartered Accouniqms e
1ICAI Firm ng,i,strﬁﬁgn myh

A Siva Kumar Keddy!
Pariner
Membership No: 212128

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26.05. 2018

. TPor the year ended Tor the year ended
ariiculars Nate 3t March 2618 31 Marels 2017
FRevemte {rom operations - -
Qther inceme i3 1,290,111 84,123
Totnl income 1,209,111 4,123
Expenses ,
Other expenses 14 R4,198 24,7172
Total expense 44,198 24,772
I'rofit belore 1ax 44,913 50351
‘Tax expenses
IProvision for Income Tax 13,878 18,339
Prafit for 1he year 31,035 41,012
Total com grelwnsivc inroine for {lie vear 31,835 43,012
Earniugs per equity share (nominal value of INR 1000) in INR
Basic and Diluted 6.2] 820
Summary of signilicant accounting policies 1lod

The accompanying notes are an integral pari of the standalone Gnancial statements.

for and: on hehalf of e Board of Dicectars of Phhjay Revail

Sumit Sgf

Director

DEN: 00291185

opejtivs Private Linited

IHN: G1028417




Prajay Retnil Properties Private Limited

[n. Equity Share Capital

Statement of Chianges in Equity Tor the year ended March 31, 2018
{(All amounts in Indian Rupees, excepl share data and where otherwise stated)

Retained Earnings

Partieulars No. of shares Amount

Equity shares of INR 10 each issucd

At March 31, 2017 5,000 50,600,000
AlMarch 31, 2018 5,000 50,00,000
Equity shares of INR 10 each subscribed and fully paid-up

At March 31, 2017 5,000 50,000,000
At March 31, 2018 5,000 50,00,000
ih. Other equity

Reserves and Swrplus
Particulars Total

At April 1, 2017

(1,49,22,544)

(1,49,22,544)

Profit for the year 41,012 41,012
At March 31, 2018 {1,48,81,532) {1,48,81,532)
Profit for the year 31,035 31,035
Balance as of 31 March 2018 {1,48,50,497) (I,48,50,497)

Summary of sighificant accounting policies

As per our report of even date attached

for Madu K Reddy Associates
Chartered Accowntants

CA.Siva Kumar Reddy.
Partner
Membership No: 212128

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26.05. 2018

1to5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Prajay

Retail Properties Private Limited

. Vijay Sen Reddy
Director Director
DIN: 00291185

Sumnit Sep-

DIN: 01028417




Prajay Retail Properties Private Limited
Setement of Cosh Flows
(ATl amounts in Indinn Rupecs, except share data and where oiheradse Siaded)

Crperating activitics
Broafit befere fax

Depeeeiation of fangible assets

Working capited adfusinents:

(Increase)/ decrease in inventorics
(Increase)f decrease in investiments

Increase/ {decrease) in provisions

Income tax paid
et cash flows from operating activities

Euvesting activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Interest received (finance income)
Mot cash flows used in investing activities

Financing acfivilies

inierest paid

Particolars Fox the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 Mareh 2017
44,513 59,351
Adjusiments io reconcile profit befove iax 1o net eash flows:
Finanee income (incloding fair value change in financial instruments) 1,29,111 84,123
Tintnee costs (including fair vatue change in financial instreements) -, -
{1,20,943) (75,12
(Increase ) deercuse in other financial assets 62516 48,56 385
cxease! (decrense) in trade payables and other financial fiabilities 17,100 {16,458)
Increasef {decrease) in other curient Habilities - {48,00,000)
3,947 -
144,244 1,07,689
18,339 23.796
1,25,905 83,893
(1.29.111) (84,123)
(1,29,11D) (84,123
Proceeds / (repayment) from long term borrowings, nct - -
Proceeds / (repayment) from short tenm borrowings, net - -
Net casls flows from/ (used i) financing activities - -
1Net inerease / {(deercase) in cash and cash equivalenis . {3,206) (230)
Cash and eash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note §) 10,012,334 10,12,564
Cash and cash cquivatenis at the end of the year {refer note 8) 14,09,128 10,12,334

Swimnmary of significa accounting policies

Az per our report of even date aftached

for Madu K Reddy Assoctates

Clrartered Accouniants

ICAL Fiem Regig@mﬁumbw Q085925
L

CA Siva Kumar Re
Pariner
Membership No: 212128

fllace: Hyderabad
Date: 26.05. 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

Tl

for and on behalf of the Board of Direciors of Prajay Retail Propedies Private

Litnited
N7
§47 Sen Reddy SumigSén
Direclor "Direetor

DIN: 00291785 DIN: 01028417




Prajay Refail Properties Private Limifed
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

7 Cash and bank balances

Particulars 31 March 2018| 31 Mareh 2017
Balances with banks:

- On cuerent accounts (a) 6,47,986 6,48,635
Cash on hand 3,61,143 3,63,699
Cash and cash equivaients 14,009,129 10,12,_2}_'__55__:5“

8  Other assets
Particulars 31 March 2618} 31 March 2017
Current asseis
Prajay Engineers Syndicate Limited 8,37,36,471 1,73,05,987
Vifmohan Construction Private Limited 28,91,000 28.91.000
Other Advances * Co- 65,00,000
8,66,27,471 8,66,96,987




"rajny Retail Properties Private Limited
Notes forming pari of the financial s¢itements

{Al amounts in Indian Rupess, except share duta snd where ofherwise stated)

9 Share Capital
Barticulars 31 March 2018{ 31 March 2017
Authorised Share Cuphiat
5,000 (March 31, 2017: 5,000) cquity shaves of Rs, £,000 each 50,00,000 50,000,000
lssued equity capital ‘
5,000 {March 31, 2017: 5,000} equity shares of 2$.1,000 each 50,060,000 50,00,000
Subscribed and fully paid-up
5,000 (March 31, 2017: 5,000) equity shares of Rs. 1,000 cagh S0,00,000 50,00,000
50,00,000 50,830,000
(1) Reconciliation of shares outstanding ¢ the beginning and end of
the reporting year
31 March 2098 31 Maweh 2087
Particulars n
No. of equity Amount No. of equity Amont
shares shares
Outstanding at 1he beginning of the year 3,000 54,00.000 5,000 50,00.000
Issued during the year - - . .
Outstanding at the end of the vear 5,000 50,00,000 5.000 30,00,000
(b) Details of shareholders holding mare than 5% shures in the
31 March 2018 31 March 217
Particulars No. of cquity | % hoiding in the| | No. of equity [% holding in the
shares held class shares held class
~Prajay Engineers Syndicate Limited 4,994 99.55 4,994 99.55
10 Other equity :
Particuiars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Retained camings
Ogpening balance {1,48,81,532) {1,49.22 344)
Profit/(foss} for the year 31,035 41,012
Less: Transfers fo general reserve - -
Closing balance {148,50,497} {1,48,81,532)
Total ather equity { 1.48!5'9!497) {1,48,61,532




Prajay Retail Propertics Privie Limited
Notes forming parl of (e financiad stntements

11 Other finascial Bubitiics

{All amourds in Indinn Rupees, except share dal and where olherwise stated)

4

Particulars 31 March 2008] 31 March 2017
Cuirrent B
RBD Legend Infrastrocture PyLLid, 8,45,00,000 #,45,00,000
Legend Bstates Pt bad. 16,24,500 16,24,500
Provision for Audi Fee 34,950 17,250
8,61,59,450 8,61.41,750
12 Other current Habilities

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2037
e ——r

Advance from Customers 25,18,000 25,18,000
Mohd.Basheer 1,950,000 1,95,00,000
2,26,18,000 2,20,18,000

.




13 Other income

Prajay Retait Properties Private Limited
Notes formving part of the finaneial statements

{All amounts i Indian Rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulirs 31 March 2018 31 March 2007

Interest income
On fixed deposiis L2511 84,123
ETXTY CZNPER

14 Other cxpenses

Particulars 31 Miarch 2018 3 Marel 2017

Rafes & Taxes 05,849 6,500
Audit Feg 17,700 14,042
Bank Charges 649 230
84,198 24,972




Prajay Retail Properties Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Allamounts in Indian Rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

1. General information

Prajay Retail Properties Private Limited {the Company) is a private company domiciled & incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on June 17, 1977. The Company is engaged primarily in
the business of real estate construction and development of projects.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules
2015,

2.2 Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention and on an accrual basis,
except for the following material items in the statement of financial position;

* certain financial assets and labilities are measured at fair value;
* Longterm borrowings are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

2.3 Functional carrency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional curreney of our Company.
Functional currency of an entity is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates.

2.4 Operating cycle

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013,

Assels:
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle;

b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

¢} itis expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting date.

Liabilities:
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
c) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

L




Prajay Retail Properties Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Alt amounts in Indian Rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months afler the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

L]

Current assets/ liabilities include the current portion of non-current assets/ liabilities respectively. All
other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current.

3. Significant accounting policies
3.1 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs can be estimated reliably, there is no
continuing management involvement with the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of taxes and
applicable trade discounts and allowances,

(i) Revenue from sale of land / plots is recognized in the financial year in which the agreement
to sell is executed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

* the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership;

¢ the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective controf over the land sold;

* the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

* itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company; and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.

(i) Revenue from constructed properties (excluding service tax/GST) is recognized on the
“percentage of completion method™. The total sale consideration as per the agreements to sell
constructed properties entered is recognized as revenue only when the stage of completion is
20 percent or more when the outcome of the project can be estimated reliably. When it is
probable that total costs will exceed the total project revenue the expected loss is recognized
immediately. ,

Service tax /GST does not form part of gross revenue.

Dividend and intevest incame .

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has
been established.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits wili
fiow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on,
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition,




Prajay Retail Properties Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)
3.2 Cost of construction

Cost of constructed properties includes cost of land (including fand under agreements 10 purchase),
estimated internal development costs, exteral development charges, constructions cosis and
development/ construction materials, which is charged o the statement of profit and loss based on the
percentage of revenue recognized, in consonance with the concept of matching costs and revenue. Pinal
adjustment is made on completion of the applicable project.

Cost of Construction Contracts includes estimated construction costs and constrction material, which is
charged to the statement of profit and loss based on percentage of revenue recognized measured by survey
of waork performed as per accounting policy above, dependin g on the nature of the contract, in consonance
with the concept of matching costs and revenue. Final adjustment is made on completion of the applicable
project,

Overhead expenses comprising costs other than those directly charged to the jobs are distributed over the
various projects on a pro-rata basis having regard to the activity and nature of such projects.

3.3 Foreign carrencies

in preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the company’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are refranslated at the rates prevailing at that date, Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are pot retranslated. Exchénge differences on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

3.4 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended vse or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or foss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.5 Taxation

Income tax expense consists of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is

recognized in equity.

Current tax:

+

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax;

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences: the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in & transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit; differences relating to investments in subsidiarics and jointly




Prajay Refail Properties Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

controlled entities fo the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foresecable future; and
taxable temporary differences arising upon the initial recognition of goodwill, Deferred tax is measured at
the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and

liabilitics are

offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate (o
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but
they intend fo settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and labifities will be
realized simultaneously.

A deferred fax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no Jonger probabie that the rclated fax benefit will be
realized.

3.6 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS™) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is caleulated by dividing the profit or loss atiributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which includes all
stock options granted to employees,

3.7 Property, plant and equipment .
Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use. Botrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the
cost of that asset.

When paits of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and fosses upon disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognized
net within “other (income)/expense, net” in the income statement.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to
the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs and maintenance are recognized

in the income statement as incurred.

Items of property, plant and equipment acquired through exchange of non-monetary assets are measured
at fair value, unless the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or the fair value of either the
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Prajay Retail Properties Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

asset received or asset given up is not reliably measurable, in which case the asset exchanged is recorded

at the carrying amount of the asset given up.
Deprecintion

Depreciation is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of property, plant and equipment as prescribed in Schedule 1 to the Companies Act, 2013, Leased assets
are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives. The depreciation expense is
included in the costs of the functions using the asset, Land is not depreciated,

Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors and which is an integral
part of a tangible asset, is capitalized as part of the related tangible assct. Subsequent costs associated
with maintaining such software are recognized as expense as incurred. The capitalized costs are amortized
over the estimated useful iife of the software or the remaining useful life of the tangible fixed asset,
whichever is lower.

3.8 Inventorics

Inventories are valued as under:

* Land earmarked for property development is valued at cost. Cost includes land acquisition cost,
registration charges and stamp duty.

» Constructed properties includes cost of land, premium for development rights, construction costs and
allocated interest and expenses incidental to the projects undertaken by the company.

3.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date*to determine whether there is any indication of impairment, If
any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value in
use and its fair valve less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of
assets (the “cash-generating unit™),

An impairment foss is recognized in the income statement if the estimated recoverable amount of an asset
or its cash-generating unit is lower than its carrying amount. Impairment losses recoghized in prior
periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been & change in the estimates vsed to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. Goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount
of an investment in an associate is not recognized separately, and therefore is not tested for impairment
separately. Instead, the entire amount of the investment in an associate is tested for impairment as a single
assct when there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate may be impaired.
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Notes fornting part of the financial statements

(Al amounts in indian Rupecs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

An impairment loss in respect of equity accounted investee is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of investment with its carrying amount. An impairment foss is recognized in the income
statement, and reversed if there has been a favorable change in the estimates nsed (o determine the

recoverable amount.

310 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A lability is recognized for
the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated retiably.

Defined contribution plans

The Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans are charged to the income statement as and
when the services are received from the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Company is demonstrably committed,
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to ecither terminate employment
before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a resolt of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized as an
expense if the Company has made an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer
will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of other long term employee benefits is the amount of future
benefit that employees have ecarned in return for their service in the cutrent and previous periods. That
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, Re-measurements are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

3.11 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to sette the obligation. If the effect of the time value of mongy is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessinents of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

3.12  Contingent liabilities & contingent assets

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation in respect of which thg, likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements, However, contingent assets are assessed
continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related

income are recognised in the period in which the chahge occurs,

3.13 Financial instruments

Initial recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial fiabilities when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on
initial recognition, except for frade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issues of financial assels and financial
liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition,

Subsequent measurement
Non-derivative financial instruments
» Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held with a business mode}
whose objective to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows, and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

+ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequentiy measured at fair value throu gh other comprehensive income if it
is held with a business mode! whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Further in cases where the Company had made an irrevocable election based on ifs
business model, for its investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent
changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income,

¢ Investment in subsidiarics and associates
Investment in subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost in the separate financial statements.
» Tinancial Habilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.

4. Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are deseribed in note 3, the management
of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experignce and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.
ﬁ‘ ‘
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions (o accounting

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that

period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and Tuture

periods.

The foliowing are the areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements that the management has
made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Provision and contingent liability

On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies.
For contingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in financial
statements. Loss Contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed as
Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. Centingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not
disclosed in the financial statements. Gain contingencies are not recognized until the contingency has
been resolved and amounts are received or receivable.

Useful lives of depreciable assets '

Management reviews the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting. As at March 31, 2018
management assessed that the useful lives represent the expected utility of the assets to the Company.
Further, there is no significant change in the useful lives as compared to previous year.

{nvestment in equity instruments of subsidiary and associate companies

During the year, the Company assessed the investment in equity instrument of subsidiary and associate
companies carried at cost for impairment testing. These companies are expected to generate positive cash
flows in the future years. Detailed analysis has been carried out on the future projections and the
Company is confident that the investments do not require any impairment.

' @
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15. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
15.1 Contingent liabilities not provided for - NIL.
15.2 Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on capital account — NIL.

15.3 There are no dues to Small Scale Industrial Undertakings in excess of Rs.1, 00,000/ each
and outstanding for more than 30 days.

15.4 Segment Information:

The company has only one business segment - Real Estate Development. There are no
secondary segments,

15.5 Auditor’s remuneration provided for Rs.17, 700.
15.6 No Managerial remuneration is paid during the year as the project is under implementation.

15.7 The company was executed the sale deed during the financial year 2012-2013 with the
parties and collected the consideration. But due to various reasons the company was not
handed over the possession effectively and not transferred the significant risks and rewards
of ownership to the buyers as the sale deed executed property. For the above said reasons the
company not accounted the above 5aid transaction as sale and not recognized as revenue.

Further as per the revised Guidance Note on Accounting for Real Estate Transactions issued
by the ICAI in Feb” 2012, a revenue shall be recognize if all the condition specified in
paragraphs 10 and 11 of Accounting Standard (AS) 9, Revenue Recognition are satisfied
which is primarily talks about following situations:

a) The seller has transferred to the buyer all significant risks and rewards of ownership and
the seller retains 1o effective control of the real estate to a degree usually associated with
ownership;

b) The seller has effectively handed over possession of the real estate unit to the buyer
forming part of the transaction;

¢) No significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideration that will be
derived from the real estate salés; and

d) Itis not unreasonable to expect ultimate collection of revenue from buyer.
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15.8 Related Party disclosure;

A: List of Related Parties:

Prajay Engineers Syndicaie Limited
Vijmohan Constructions Pvi. limited

B: Transactions with related parties:

Holding company.

other entity

Holding company

Other entity

1. Loans Received

Prajay Engineers Syndicate |td

31-03-2018

31-03-2017

31-03-2018

31-03-2017

2. Loans Repaid

Prajay Engineers Syndicate Ltd

81,632

48,44,270

2. Advances taken

Prajay Engineers Syndicate Ltd

3. Advances given
Prajay Engineers Syndicate Ltd

Vijmohan Constructions Pvt Lid

65,00,000

4. Balances as on 31.03.2018.
Loans received

Advances given

8,37,36,471

7,73,18,103

28,91,000

28,981,000
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15.8 The company has entered into a Development Agreement with M/s. RBD Legend
Infrastructure  Pvt. Ltd

15.9 Claims against the company not acknowledged as Debts is Nil.

Vide our Report of even Date attached
For Mis Madu K.Reddy Associates, For Prajay Retail Properties Private Limited.
Chartered Accountants.

Regn.Ne.0089928

e O <
CA Siva Kumar Redb&%ﬁ’“bﬁ ijay sen Reddy  Sumit Sen <
Partner &v@ﬁ ; o Director Director
M.No.212128 DIN NO.00291185 DIN 01028417

Date; 26.05.2018

Place: Hyderabad
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To
The Members of .
M/S. Prajay Land Capital Private Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of M/S. PRAJAY
LAND CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position),
Loss(financial performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows of the Company
and the changes in equity of company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards(Ind AS) specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Standalone Tnd AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements by the
Board of Directors of the company.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based
on our audit,

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made there under. '

VIJAYAWADA BRANCH : BENGALURU BRANCH
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We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material

misstatement, ' '

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements,

1

Basis for Qualified opinion:

Interest amounting to Rs.330.38 Lakhs on loans taken from Holding Company has not been
provided in the books of accounts as per Indian Accounting Standard 109. This constitutes a
departure from the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 2013,
Accordingly, if the interest have been accounted has the Reserves and surplus would have
been decreased by Rs.330.38 Lakhs.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, except for the effects of the matter described in the basis for Qualified Opinion given in the
above paragraph the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fuir view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of
affairs(Financial Position) of the Company as at March 31, 201 8, and its Loss(Financial
Performance including other comprehensive income) and its Cash Flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued By
~ the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;




a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the

Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
Our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone Ind AS financial statements;

i.  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts;

iii. ~ There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Place: Hyderabad _
Date: 15.05.2018 o M.No: 212128
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the standalone Ind AS
financial statements of M/S. PRAJAY LAND CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the company as of
and for the year ended 31st March 201 8, we have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of M/S. PRAJAY LAND CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED (“the

Company) as of that date.,
Management’s Responsibility for Infernal Finanecial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”, These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. 'We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

OT EITOT. @@'ﬁ%‘
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accu rately
and fairly retlect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deterjorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on “the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Nole on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”,

+

Place: Hyderabad Partner
Date: 15.05.2018 : M No: 212128
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Tv.

Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 1 ander the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of our report of even date to the standalone Ind AS financial statements
of the M/s Prajay Land Capital Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2018;

In Respect of Fixed Asscis
The company does not have any fixed assets as on reporting date.
In Respect of inventories

a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year at
reasonable intervals and in our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management were
reasonable and adequate in,relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its
business.

¢) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the
Company has maintained proper records of its inventories and no materia
discrepancies were noficed on physical verification.

Compliance under section 189 of the Companies act, 2013

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained
under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (C) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Compliance under section 185 and 186 of the Companies act, 2013

In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security,

Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit)
Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.
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IX.

Maintenance of Cost Records

The Company is not required to maintain cost records pursuant to the rules made by
the ceniral government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of

section 148 of the companies Act, 2013.
Deposit of Statutory Dues

a. Statutory dues for more than six months

The Company is regular in depositing of undisputed statutory dues including
Provident fund, Employee’s state insurance, Income- tax Goods and Service Tax
any other statutory dues applicable to the company with the appropriate authorities,
No disputed amounts payable in respect of statutory dues were outstanding as at the
last day of the financial year for a period of more than six months from the date

they become payable.  °

b. Dispute for Tax and duty

There is no dispute with the Income tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of excise,
value added tax, Goods and Service Tax regarding any duty or tax payable

Repayment of Loans or Borrowings

The Company has not borrowed any loans from Financial Institutions, Banks and debenture
holders.

Utilisation of Money raised by Public Offer and Term Loan for which they Raised

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer including debt instruments and term Loans.

Reporting of Fraud

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year. However Mrs. D. Hymavathi Reddy,
one of the shareholders of the company, has filed a petition CP No.119/HDB/2018 before the
National Company Law tribunal (NCLT), Hyderabad Bench against Parent company i.e. Prajay
Engineers Syndicate Limited and made the company also one of the respondent. The petitioner
made a complaint before the NCLT against the company, the board, its functioning, appointment
/ resignations of directors of the board.

XL  Managerial Remuneration

No Managerial Remuneration paid to Directors during the year.




XIL

X1

XIV.

XV.

XYL

Compliance by Nidhi Company Regarding Net Owned Funds to Debt Ratio

As per information and records available with us the company is not a Nidhi Company.

Related Party transactions

In our opinion, there is no transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013,

Compliance under section 42 of Companies Act — 2013 regarding Private Placement of
Shares or Debentures

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.

Compliance under section 192 of Companies Act 2013

The Company has not entered into any Non-Cash Transactions with Directors or persons
connected with him.,

Requirement of Registration under 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
The company is not required to be registered under section 45 1A of the Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934.
For M/s Madu K Reddy Associates

Chartered Accountants e,
F.R.No.008992S

Place: Hyderabad Partner
Date: 15.05.2018 M.No. 212128
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the standalone Ind AS
financial statements of M/S. PRAJAY LAND CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the company as of
and for the year ended 31st March 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of M/S. PRAJAY LAND CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED (“the

Company) as of that date,
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its' business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such ‘controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or CITor.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance thh the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinicn, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on “the inlernal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Fmancnal Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”,

For M/s Madu K Reddy Associates
Chartered Accountas LA
FRN: 0089928 7485
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Prajay Land Capital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Allamounts in Indian Rupees , except share data and where otherwise stated)

L. General information

Prajay Land Capita) Private Limited (the Com pany) is a private company domiciled & incorporated under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on Feb 17, 2007. The Company is engaged primarily in the
business of real estate construction and development of projecis.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared and presented in accordance with the Indjan
Accountmg Standards (“Ind AS™) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules

2015.

2.2 Accounting convention
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention and on an accrual bagis,
except for the following material items in the statement of financial position:

* certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value;
¢ long term borrowings are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

2.3 Functional currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of our Company.
Functional cutrency of an entity is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity

operates,

2.4 Operating cycle

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-cursent as per the Company’s nornial
operating cycle and other criteria sef out in the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,

Assels:

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria;

a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

¢) itis expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d) itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to séttle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reperting date,
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Prajay Land Capital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial siatcments
(All amounts in Indian Ry pees , except share data and where otherwise stated)

Liabilities;
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria;

a) itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

b} it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

¢) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer seftlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a hiability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Current assets/ liabilities include the current portion of non-current assets/ liabilities respectively, Al
other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current.

3. Significant accounting policies
3.1 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs can be estimated reliably, there is no
continuing management involvement with the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of taxes and

applicable trade discounts and allowances.

(i) Revenue from sale of land / plots is recognized in the financial year in which the agreement
to sell is executed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

¢ the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership;

* the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the land sol d;

» the amount of revenue can be measured rel iably;

* itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company; and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be

measured reliably.

(ii} Revenue from constructed properties (excluding service (ux/GST) s recognized on the
“percentage of completion method”. The total sale consideration as per the agreements to sell
constructed properties entered is recognized as revenue only when the stage of completion is
20 percent or more when the outcome of the project can be estimated reliably. When it is
probable that total costs will exceed the total project revenue the expected loss is recognized
immediately.

Service tax / GST does not form part of gross revenue.

o g
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Prajay Land Capital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees , except share data and where otherwise stated)

Dividend and Interest income

vestments s recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive Payment has

Dividend income from in
been established.

standing and at the effective Interest rate applicable, which is
ed life of the financig)

3.2 Cost of construction

Cost of constructed properties includes cost of land (including land under agreements to purchase),
estimated  internal development costs, external development charges, constructions costs  and
development/ construction materials, which is charged to the statement of profit and loss based on the
percentage of revenye recognized, in consonance with the concept of matching costs and reven ue. Final

adjustment is made on completion of the applicable project.




Prajay Land Capiial Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees , except share data and where otherwise stated)

3.3 Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the company’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are refranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not refranslated. Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,

3.4 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.5 Taxation

Income tax expense consists of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is

recognized in equity.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes, Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences: the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a fransaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit; differences relaling to investments in subsidiaries and Jointly
controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foresecable future; and
taxable temporary differences arising upon the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at
the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are

offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but
they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be

realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
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Prajay Land Capital Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial séatements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees , except share data and where otherwise stated)

reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax

realized.

benefit will be

3.6 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS™) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
iry shareholders of the Company by

EPS is caleulated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordin:

the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which includes all

stock options granted to employees.
3.7 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and other costs
directly attributable to bringing the assst to a workin g condition for its intended use. Borrowin g costs that
are directly attributable to the construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the

cost of that asset.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment,

Gains and losses upon disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognized
net within “other (income)/expense, net” in the income statement.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to
the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs and maintenance are recognized

in the income statement as incurred.
Items of property, plant and equipment acquired through exchange of non-monetary assets are measured

at fair value, unless the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or the fair value of either the
asset received or asset given up is not reliably measurable, in which case the asset exchanged is recorded

at the carrying amount of the asset given up.

Frechold land and buildings (properties) were carried in the balance sheet prepared in accordance with
Indian GAAP on the basis of carrying cost (cost model) on 31 March 2015. The company has elected to
regard those carrying costs of property as deemed cost at the date of transition. Accordingly, the

Company has not revalued the property at 1 April 2015.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated usefu] lives
of property, plant and equipment a3 prescribed in Scheduls I to the Compartics Act, 2013, Leased assels
are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives. The depreciation expense is
included in the costs of the functions using the asset, Land is not depreciated.
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Prajay Land Capital Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees , except share data and where otherwise stated)
Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors and which is an integra)
part of a tangible asset, is capitalized as part of the related tangible asset. Subsequent costs associated
with maintaining such software are recognized as expense as incurred. The capitalized costs are amortized
over the estimated useful life of the software or the remaining useful life of the tangible fixed asset,
whichever is lower.

3.8 Inventories

Inventories are valued as under:

* Land carmarked for property development is valued at cost. Cost includes land acquisition cost,

registration charges and stamp duty.
Constructed properties includes cost of land, premium for development rights, construction costs and
allocated interest and expenses incidental to the projects undertaken by the company.

3.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If

any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value in
use and its fair value less costs to seli. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of

assets (the “cash-generating unit™).

An impairment loss is recognized in the income statement if the estimated recoverable amount of an asset
or its cash-generating unit is lower than its carrying amount. Impairment losses recognized in prior
periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer
exisis. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. Goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount
of an investment in an associate is not recognized separately, and therefore is not tested for impairment
separately. Instead, the entire amount of the investment in an associate is tested for impairment as a sin gle
asset when there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate may be impaired.

An impairment loss in respect of equity accounted investes is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of investment with its cartying amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the income
statement, and reversed if there has been a favorable change in the estimates used to determine the

recoverable amount,
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Prajay Lund Capital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees , except share data and where otherwise stated)

3.10 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term cmployee benefits are expensed as the related service ig provided. A liability is recopnized for
the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Defined contribution DPlans

The Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans are charged to the income statement as and
when the services are received from the epm ployees,

Termination benefits

3.11 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of & past event, the Company has a Present legal or constryctive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it js probabie that an outflow of economic benefits wil] pe
required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is materia), provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at 4 bre-tax rate that reflects cyrrent market

312 Contingent liabilitjes & contingent assets

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made whep there is a possible obligation or 3 present obligation
that may, but probably wil] not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is g possible obligation or 4
present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision oy

disclosure is made,

Contingent assets are 1ot recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed
continually and if it i virtually certain that an infiow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related

income are recognised in the perjod in which the change occurs,
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Prajay Land Ca pital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees , except share data and where otherwise stated)

3.13 Financial instruments

Initial recognition
The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when i becomes a party the
contractual provisions of the instrument, All financial assets and liabiljties are recognized at fair value on
initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are inttially measured af transaction price.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issues of financial assets and financial
Liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition,
Subsequent measurement

Non-derivative Jinancial instruments

* Financial assets carvied a amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held with a business mode|
Wwhose objective 1o hold the asset in order to collect contractyal cash flows, and the contractyal
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstandin g

¢ Financial assets at fair valye through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fajr value through other comprehensive income if it

and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest op the principal amount
outstanding. Further in cases where the Company had made an irrevocable election based on its
business model, for its investiments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent
changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income,

* Investment in subsidiaries and associates

Investment in subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost in the separate financial statements,

* Financial liabilities

assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant, Actual
results may differ from these estimates,




Prajay Land Capital Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Allamounts in Indian Rupees , except share data and where otherwise stated)

period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and Tuture
periods,

The following are the areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements that the management has
made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significani
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Provision and contingent liability

On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies.
For contingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in financial
statements. Loss Contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed as
Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not
disclosed in the financial statements. Gain contingeneies are not recognized until the contingency has
been resolved and amounts are received or receivable.

Useful lives of depreciable assets
Management reviews the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting. As at March 31, 2018

management assessed that the useful lives represent the expected utility of the assets to the Company.
Further, there is no significant change in the useful lives as compared o previous year.

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiary and associate companies

During the year, the Company assessed the investment in equity instrument of subsidiary and associate
companies carried at cost for impairment testing. These companies are expected to generate positive cash
flows in the future years, Detailed analysis has been carried out on the future projections and the
Company is confident that the investments do not require any impairment.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its investments in subsidiary companies
and associate companies as of April 1, 2015 (transition date} measured as per the previous GAAP and use
that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.




Prajuy Land Capital Private Limites
Balance Sheet ns ot 3131 March, 2018
(AN nmounis in Indian Rupees, except share data und where othorwise stoied)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
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for Madu K Reddy Associates

Charrered Accountonts .

CAl Firm Registratipn numbefZB080578%

! : € //,,Dh ;;’}b”.a‘lisn ngﬁgg"?{}m‘
. £, e [

e

CA.Siva Kumar Ret{y, o

Partner B A ~ 24
. A i
Membership No: 212128 X;\;\i:':ﬁ-’rf “chcﬂfj’\j}’f
B e

for and on beha

Yol

P.Haniketh Reddy
Director
DIN: 08094912

-
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Fof the Board of Directors of Prajay Land Capiigl
Private Limited
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P.Puindina

DIN: 08097168

Asad As ut
Particulars Note 31 Mareh 2018 31 Maveh 2017
Assels
Current assely
Inventories 5 02,04,74,261 62,04,74, 261
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances [ 1, 16,402 1,62.30K
Toial assets 62,05,90,663 02,06,36,620
Equity and Liabikities ‘
Lequity
Lguity share capital 7 5,000,000 3,00,000
Other equity 22.57,95,77) 22,58,63,847
Total equity 22,62,95,771 22,63,63,847
Non-curvent linbilities
Firancial Liabilitjes
Borrowings 9 23,60,57,426 23,60,57,426
Defierred tax fiabilities (net) 10 3,63,07,887 3,63,07, 887
27,23,65,314 27,23,65,314
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables 11 7,500 7,500
Other firancial liabilities 12 12,1922 078 [2,18,99.968
Total Liabilities 12,19,24.57% 12,1907 468
Total equity and liabilities 62,03,90,663 62,06,36,629
Summary of significant accounting policies 104




Pripay Lund Capital Private Limiies
Stdemtens of Profit pad Loss for the year endeq Mareh 31, 2018
(A amounts in indiug Rupees, excepl shure dajg nd where otherwise slated)

Parvticulars

T S ——

For the year euded Yor the yenr ended

Note 31 Marvch 2018 31 Mareh 2017
——= 2 0reh 2017

Revemie from operations
OHher income
Total income

Expenses
Finanee costs
Other capenses
Tutal cxpense

Profit before tax
Tax expenses
Cinrent tax
Beferred (ax benefol
Total tax expense
Proiit for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per equity share (nominal value of INR 1) in INR
Basic and Dituted

Summary of significans accounting policies

As per our report of even date attached
for Madu K Reddy Associates
Chartered Accountanis
ICAI Firm Registration 1

nber; 008992

CA Siva Kumar Reddy.
Fatrtner
Membership No; 212128

Piace: Hyderabad
Dater 15.05. 2018

————— ———————

13 - 289,89 509
14 68,076 17425
084V 2.50,06,834
T e 2906834
{68,076) (2,‘)()_,()6,834)
- (35.23,951)
——— T
- (55,23 951
(68,076) (2,34.82,883}
(68,076) (2,34,82,883)] -
(1.36) (469.66)
T4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
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Director
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Prajuy Land Capital Frivate Limites
Sintenrent of Changes in Equity for the year ended Mareh 31, 2018
{Allamounts in Indian Rupees, exeept share data and where otherwise staled)

o Kquity Shave Capital

No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of INR 1D ¢neh issued
ALApril 1, 2017 50,000 3,00,000) |
At March 31, 2018 50,000 3,00,000)
Equity shares of INR 10 each subscribed and fully paid-up
Al April 1, 2017 30,000 3.00,000
At March 31,2018 50,000 5.00,000

b. Other equity

Reserves and Surplus
Particulars . . N Total
Capital Reserve | Retained Earnings
At April 1, 2017 11,20,48,603 11,38,15,244 22,58,63,847
Profit {or the year (68,076) (68,076)
Other comprehensive income
Balance as of 31 March 2018 11,20,48,603 11,37,47,168 22,57,95,771

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the siandalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
tor and on behalf of Board of Directors of Prajay land Capital Privaie

for Madu K Reddy Associates Limited
Chartered Accountants _
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Pariner ' *‘% Direclor Director
Membership No: 212128 %a Accoﬁ"" DIN: 08094912 DIN: 08097168

Piace: Hyderabad
Date: 15.05, 2018




Prajay Land Cupital Private Limifes
Statement of Cush Flows for the period ended 315t Mach, 2014
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees, except shire data and where olherwise slded}

Particutars

For ihe year eaded
31 Mareh 2018

for the year ended
1 Mareh 2017

Operating activities
Profit before iax
Adjiestments fo reconcile profit bufore tax to het el flenes,
Depreciation of amgible assels
FFinance income (including Giir value change i finangial instiroments)
Finaneg costs (including Fair value change in finincial instruments)
Working capited adinstments;
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables
{increase) decrense in inventories
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables mxd other financial iabilitics
tncrease/ (decrease) in provisions

Incone lax paid

Net cash flows [rom operating netivities

Investing aetivities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capilal work in progress)
Inlerest received (finance income)

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds / (repayment) from long term borrowings, net

Proceeds / (repayment) from short term borrowings, net

Interest paid
Net cash Tows from/ (used in) Bnancing activities

Netinerease / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 13)
Casir and cash equivalents at the ead of the year (refer note 13)

Summary of significant accounting policies

Ag per our report of even date attuched

for Madu K Reddy Associates
Chartered decountants

ICAI Firm Registrati®h number: _
/ It ﬂ?
g . '}If‘?v

]

CA.Siva Kumar Rg y.
Fartner
Membership No: 212128

£, o, 0085525
Hyderabad J

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 1505, 2018

lto 4

The aceompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone {Tnancial statements.

for and on Lehalf of Board of Directors of
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Prajay Land Capita) Private Limitey
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees, excepl share duto and where otherwise sinted)

5 Iaventories

Land at Cost
Land and construction work in progress - al cost

¢ Cash and bank balances

Balances with banks:
- On current accounts
Cash on hand
Cash and cash equivatents (A)

3§ Mareh 2018

3 Mareh 2017

15,08,63,625 13,008,63,623
46,96,10,636 46,96, 11,636
62,04,74,261 . 62,04,74,261

31 Mareh 2018

3 March 2017

49,528 92,194
66,874 70,174
1,16,402 1,62,368

£ Mo, 2050025 7 11
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Prajay Land Capitnl Privade Limites
Notes forming pavi of the tinnneinl sisdements

7 Shaee Capiial

Authorised Share Capitn

(Al anrounts in tndinn Rupees, exeept share dato und where otherwise siuted)

31 Mareh 2018

I March 2017

30,000 (March 21, 2017: 50,0003 equity shares of s, |0 euch 5,00,U00 5,000
Issued equity capiial
SCO00 (Matrch 31, 2017: 50,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 5,00,000 500,000
Subscribed und fully puid-up
30,000 (March 31, 2007: 50,000 equity shares of' Rs. 10 cach 5,00,000 500,000

500,600 3,00,000
{#) Recomeilintion of shaves owtsinnding at the beginning and end of
the reporting yenr

31 March 2018 3 Mureh 2017
Particuigrs - -
No. of equity Amount No. of equily Antount
shnres shares

Cuistanding at the beginning of the year 50,000 500,000 50,000 5,00,000
Issued during the year - P . A
Oulstanding at the end of (he year 30,000 500,000 50,000 5,00,000

(1) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shaves in ihe

31 Maeeh 2018

31 Mareh 2017

Nu. of equity

o holding in he

Particalars No. of equily % holding in ibe
shires ligld class shires held cluss
Prajay Properties Private Limited 49,994 99.98 49,994 99,94

8 Olber equity

Capilal reserves

Opening balance

Add: Addilions during the year
Closing balance

Retained earnings

Opening balance

Profit/(loss) for the year

Less: Translers to general reserve
Closmg balance

Total other equity

31 March 018

11,20.48,603

31 March 2017

112,448,603

11,20.48,603

11,20,48,603
11,38,15,244 13,72,98,127
(68,076) (2,34,82 883)
11,3747,168 11,38,15,244
22,57,95,771 22,58,63 847

-



Prajay Land Capital Private Limites
Notes forming part of (he financial stafements
(Al amounts in Indinn Rupees, except shure dotn ind where otherwise stuied)

9 Dorrowings

MNop-current Borrowings
Blusecured lonks

Deposit lrom Prajay Propertics Privite Limited

Totad nen-curvent borrowings

10 Deferred tox liabilitics

Deterved tax for openg Ind AS adjustiments

11 Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enferprises and small enierprises
Others

12 Other finnvcial liabilities

Current

Prajay Engineers Syndicate Limited
Prajuy Properties Private Limited
Provision for Audit Fee

3t Mareh 20145

23,6057 426

JE Ml 2007

23,60,57,426

23,60,57,426

23,60,57,426

31 Mareh 2018

3.63,07,887

31 Maveh 2017

3,63,07.847

3,63,07,847

3,63,07,887

31 March 2018

7,500

3 March 2017

7,500

7,504

1500

M March 2018

31 Maveh 2017

75,714 54,554
12,18,28.664 12,18,28,164
17,700 17,250
12,19,22,078 12,18,99,968

ER. Ho. 0089428
Hyderabad

b




Prajay Land Capital Privade Limitey
Noies forming puvd of ihe Gnancinl sinfements
{AlLamounts in lndian Rupees, except share dntn ond where olherwise stated)

13 Finaoce ¢cosis

Unwinding of interest on lHabilities discounted

14 Other expenses

Audilors’ wenumeration
Ofther geiteral expenses

31 Mareh 2018

3 Mueh 2017

2,59,89,509

2,89,89,509

31 Mareh 2018

31 Mareh 2017

17,700 17,325
30,376 -
68,076 17,325

'z
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Prajay Land Capital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All'amounts in Indian Rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

I5.Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year altributable to equity holders by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit aitributable to equity holders by the weighted
average number of Bquity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the difutive potential Equity shares into Equity

Shares,
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
Profit/(Loss) after tax aifributable to shareholders in INR (60,076) (2,34,82,883)
Thousands

Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 each 50,000 50,000
outstanding during the period used in calculating basic and

diluted EPS

Earnings per Share { Basic & Diluted) (1.36) (469.66)

16. Trade Payables - Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises:

The Company has not received any memorandum (as required to be filled by the suppliers with
the notified authority under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006)
claiming their status as micro or small or medium enterprises.

17. Commitments and contingencies

There are no pending litigations that have an impact on the financial position of the company.

18. Auditors®* Remuneration

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
(Rs.} (Rs})
Audif Fee 17,700 17,325

For Other matters

19.Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on capital account — Nil.,




Prajay Land Capital Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

20.During the year there are no Foreign Exchange earnings or Expenditure in Foreign currency.
21.No managerial remuneration is paid during the year.

22 Prior year comparatives
The figures of the previous year have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to conform with the
current year’s classification,

23 Mrs. D. Hymavathi Reddy, one of the shareholders of the company, has filed a company petition Cp
No.119/HDB/2018 before the National Company Law tribunal {NCLT), Hyderabad Bench against Parent
company i.e. Prajay Engineers Syndicate Limited and made the company also one of the respondent.
The petitioner made a complaint before the NCLT against the company, the board, its functioning,
appointment / resignations of directors of the board. The matter is pending before the Hon'ble NCLT
and the company has authorised its directors to represent the company before the Hon'ble court and

make submissions, in the best interest of the stakeholders of the company.

As per our report of even date attached

For Madu K Reddy Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Prajay Developers Private Limited.

// 5 i
) (R Ho. 0085925 § o 1)
W\ Hyderabad N
CA.Siva Kuméf Redia\ ' P.Haniketh Reddy P Rutnima
Partner N N Director Director
Membership No:212128 DIN: 08094912 DIN: 08097168

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 15.052018
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To
The Members of
M/s. Prajay Developers Private Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of M/S. PRAJAY
DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”} which comprise the Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position),
Loss(financial performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows of the Company
and the changes in equity of company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards(Ind AS) specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements by the
Board of Directors of the company.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based
on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and

P

matters which are required to be included in. @“"” dit report under the provisions of the Act and

the Rules made there under.,
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We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures io obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Ind AS of the state of affairs (financial position) of the
Company as at 31 March, 2018, and its loss (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give In “Annexure A”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.




d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133.

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

+

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
Our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts;

iil. ~ There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M/sMadu K Reddy Associates
Chartered A%m%t 1
FRN: 0089958

Place: Hyderabad Partner
Date: 15.05.2018 M.No: 212128
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the standalone Ind AS
financial statements of M/s Prajay Developers Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act?)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the company as of
and for the year ended 31st March 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of M/s Prajay Developers Private Limited (*the Company) as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material fespects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over-financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstag n%tgf the financial statements, whether due to fraud
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting,

Meaning of Internal Finaneial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally acceptéd accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. : .

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on “the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For Madu K Reddy Associates

Chartered Accou;ljam SRy

FRN: 0089928 e85,
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Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of our report of even date to the standalone Ind AS financial statements of
the M/s Prajay Developers Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2018;

In Respect of Fixed Assets
The company does not have any fixed assets as on reporting date,
In Respect of inventories

a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year at
reasonable intervals and in our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management were
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its
business. '

¢) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the
Company has maintained proper records of its inventories and no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

Compliance under section 189 of the Companies act, 2013

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained
under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) () to (C) of
the Order are not applicable,to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Compliance under section 185 and 186 of the Companies act, 2013

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.

Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit)
Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not'applicable.
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V1.

VI

VIl

IX.

XL

Maintenance of Cost Records

The Company is not required to maintain cost records pursuant to the rules made by
the central government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the companies Act, 2013.

Deposit of Statutory Dues
a, Statutory dues for more than six months

The Company is regular in depositing of undisputed statutory dues mcluding
Provident fund, Employee’s state insurance, Income- tax, Sales Tax, Service tax,
-Goods and Service Tax and any other statutory dues applicable to the company
with the appropriate authorities. No disputed amounts payable in respect of
statutory dues were outstanding as at the last day of the financial year for a period
of more than six months from the date they become payable.

+

b. Dispute for Tax and duty

There is no dispute with the Income tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of excise,
value added tax, Goods and Service Tax regarding any duty or tax payable

Repayment of Loans or Borrowings

The Company has not borrowed any loans from Financial Institutions, Banks and debenture
holders.

Utilization of Money raised by Public Offer and Term Loan for which they Raised

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer including debt instruments and term Loans.

Reporting of Fraud

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers .
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 7) However Mrs. D. Hymavathi
Reddy, one of the shareholders of the company, has filed a company petition CP
No.119/HDB/2018 before the National Company Law tribunal (NCLT), Hyderabad Bench
against Parent company i.e. Prajay Engineers Syndicate Limited and made the company also
one of the respondent. The petitioner made a complaint before the NCLT against the
company, the board, its [unctioning, appointment / resignations of directors of the board

Managerial Remuneration

No Managerial Remuneration paid to Directors-during the year.
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X1

X1

XIv.

XV,

XVI1.

Compliance by Nidhi Company Regarding Net Owned Funds to Debt Ratio

As per information and records available with us the company is not a Nidhi Company

Related Party transactions

In our opinion, There are transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Compliance under section 42 of Companies Act — 2013 regarding Private Placement of
Shares or Debentures

The company has not made any preferential allotment or pr ivate placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.

Compliance under section 192 of Companies Act 2013

The Company has not entered mto any Non-Cash Transactions with Directors or persons
connected with him.

Requirement of Registration under 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

The company is not required to be fegistered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934,
ForM/s Madu K Reddy Associates

Chartered Accountants )
F.R.No.0089928

CA. Siva Kumar Redd?gﬂ': o

Place: Hyderabad Partner
Date: 15.05.2018 : M.No. 212128



HEAD OFFICE: # 6-3-668/10/58,
Behind Hyderabad Central,

_ @\/ MADU K REDDY ASSOCIATES  5liganagar Colony, Puniasuta,
_ A

TS Hyderabad- 500 082
CHARTERED ACCOUNTAN Ph. :040-66836686 / 40265630

Email: camkr2002@gmail.com
Website: www.madukreddy.com

Independent Auditors’ Report

To
The Members of
M/s. Prajay Developers Private Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of M/S. PRAJAY
DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position),
Loss(financial performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows of the Company
and the changes in equity of company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards(Ind AS) specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements by the
Board of Directors of the company.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based
on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing ‘standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made there under,
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We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required, by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Ind AS of the state of affairs (financial position) of the
Company as at 31% March, 201 8, and its loss (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account us requircd by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.




d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133.

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,

2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act. y

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating.effectiveness of such controls, refer to
Our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone Ind AS financial statements;

ii.  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foresecable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts; ‘

iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M/sMadu K Reddy Associates
Chartered Accountants
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- Hyderabad

Place: Hyderabad Pariner
Date: 15.05.2018 _ M.No: 212128
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Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of our report of even date to the standalone Ind AS financial statements of
the M/s Prajay Developers Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2018;

1. In Respect of Fixed Assets
The company does not have any fixed assets as on reporting date.
1.  In Respect of inventories

a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year at
reasonable intervals and in our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

b} In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management were
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its
business.

c) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the
Company has maintained proper records of its inventories and no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

m. Compliance under section 189 of the Companies act, 2013

The Company has not gran'ted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained
under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (C) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

1iv.  Compliance under section 185 and 186 of the Companies act, 2013

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and I86 of the Companies
Act, 2013 In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security. '

v.  Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit)

Rules, 2015 with regard to the dep Q@g’ﬁ@%@, ted from the public are not applicable.
o
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Maintenance of Cost Records

The Company is not required to maintain cost records pursuant to the rules made by
the central government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the companies Act, 2013,

Deposit of Statutory Dues
a. Statutory dues for more than six months

The Company is regular in depositing of undisputed statutory dues including
Provident fund, Employee’s state insurance, Income- tax, Sales Tax, Service tax,
;Goods and Service Tax and any other statutory dues applicable to the company
with the appropriate authorities. No disputed amounts payable in respect of
statutory dues were outstanding as at the last day of the financial year for a period
of more than six months from the date they become payable.

b. Dispute for Tax and duty

There is no dispute with the Income tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of excise,
value added tax, Goods and Service Tax regarding any duty or tax payable

Repayment of Loans or Borrowings

The Company has not borrowed any loans from Financial Institutions, Banks and debenture
holders.

Utilization of Money raised by Public Offer and Term Loan for which they Raised

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer including debt instruments and term Loans.

Reporting of Fraud

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 7) However Mts. D. Hymavathi
Reddy, one of the sharcholders of the company, has filed a company petition CP
No.119/HDB/2018 before the National Company Law tribunal (NCLT), Hyderabad Bench
against Parent company i.¢. Prajay Engineers Syndicate Limited and made the company also
one of the respondent. The petitioner made a complaint before the NCLT against the
company, the board, its functioning, appointment / resignations of directors of the board

Managerial Remuneration




xn.  Compliance by Nidhi Company Regarding Net Owned Funds to Debt Ratio

As per information and records available with us the company is not a Nidhi Company

Xii.  Related Party transactions

In our opinion, There are transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

x1v.  Compliance under section 42 of Companies Act — 2013 regarding Private Placement of
Shares or Debentures

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.

xv.  Compliance under section 192 of Companies Act 2013

The Company has not entered into any Non-Cash Transactions with Directors or persons
connected with him,
XvVL  Requirement of Registration under 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

The company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934,

ForM/s Madu K Reddy Associates
Chartered Accountants
F.R.No.0089928

Place: Hyderabad Partner
Date: 15.05.2018 M.No. 212128



HEAD OFFICE: # 6-3-668/10/58,
Behind Hyderabad Central,

| ( ;‘\'( ‘ MADU K REDDY ASSOCIATES Durganagar Colony, Punjagutta,

T Hyderabad- 500 082
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Ph. :040-66836686 / 40265630

Email: camkr2002@gmail.com
Website: www.madukreddy.com

“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the standalone Ind AS
financial statements of M/s Prajay Developers Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the company as of
and for the year ended 31st March 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of M/s Prajay Developers Private Limited (“the Company) as of that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its, business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the andit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting -
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the cbmpany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on “the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. '

For Madu K Reddy Associates
Chartered Acccn.};rtéfﬁ:ig@*' Agsy,
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Prajay Developers Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees , except share data and where otherwise stated)

1. General information

Prajay Developers Private Limited (the Company} is a private company domiciled & incorporated under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on July 28, 2006. The Company is engaged primarily in the
business of real estate construction and development of projects,

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 of the Company have been prepared and
presented in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015,

2.2 Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention and on an acerual basis,

except for the following material items in the statement of financial position:

¢ cerfain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value;

* long term borrowings are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

2.3 Functional currency

statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of our Company.

The financial
rrency of an entity is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity

Functional cu
operates.
2.4 Operating cycle

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013,

Assets.
An asset Is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a} it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale Or consumption in, the Company’s normal

operating cycle;
b) 1itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded; :
¢) it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d) itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a lability
for at least twelve months after the reporting date,
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Prajay Developers Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees , except share data and where otherwise stated)

Liabilities:
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria;

a} it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle:

b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

¢} it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at jeast
twelve months afler the reporting date. Terms of a ltability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result i its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification,

Current assets/ liabilities include the current portion of non-current assets/ Jiabilities respectively. All
other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current.

3. Significant accounting policies
3.1 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs can be estimated reliably, there is no
continuing management involvement with the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of taxes and

applicable trade discounts and allowances.

(1) Revenue from sale of land / plots is recognized in the financial year in which the agreenment
to sell is executed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

the Company has fransferred to the buyer the si gnificant risks and rewards of ownershij p;
the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the land sold;

* the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company; and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be

measured reliably.

(i) Revenue from constructed properties (excluding service tax/GST) is recognized on the
“percentage of complction method”. The total sale consideration as per (he agreements to sel]
consiructed properties entered is recognized as revenue only when the stage of completion js
20 percent or more when the outcome of the project can be estimated reliably, When it is
probable that total costs will exceed the total project revenue the expected loss is recognized
immediately.

Service tax/ GST does not form part of gross revenue.
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Prajay Developers Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial sintements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees , except share data and where otherwise stated)

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income fiom investments is recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has

been established.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on,
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which ig
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

3.2 Cost of construction
and (including land under agreements to purchase),

estimated internal development costs, external development charges, constructions costs and
developtaent/ construction materials, which is charged to the statement of profit and loss based on the
percentage of revenue recognized, in consonance with the concept of matching costs and revenue. Final

adjustment is made on completion of the applicable project.

Cost of constructed properties includes cost of I

Cost of Construction Contracts includes estimated construction costs and construction material, which is
charged to the statement of profit and loss based on percentage of revenue recognized measured by survey
of work performed as per accounting policy above, depending on the nature of the contract, in consonance
with the concept of matching costs and revenue. Final adjustment is made on completion of the applicable
project,

Overhead expenses comprising costs other than those directly charged to the jobs are distributed over the
various projects on a pro-rata basis having regard to the activity and nature of such projects,

N v




Prajay Developers Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees , except share data and where otherwise stated)

3.3 Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the company’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in profit or [oss in the period in which they arise.

3.4 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantjal period of time to get ready for their intended uge or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
mtended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.5 Taxation

Income tax expense consists of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is

recognized in equity.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences: the injtial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit; differences relating (o investments in subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and
taxable temporary differences arisin g upon the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at
the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are

offset If there is a legally enforceable right to offsct current tax labilities and assets, and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, byt
they infend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities wil] be

realized simultaneously,

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
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Prajay Developers Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Ry pees , except share data and where otherwise stated)

reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be

realized,

3.6 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per sharve (“EPS”) data for its ordinary shares, Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which includes al]
stock options granted to employees.

3.7 Property, plant and equipment

Recogrition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. The cost.of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and other costs
directly atiributable to bringing the asset to a workin g condition for ifs intended use. Borrowin g costs that
are directly attributable to the construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the

cost of that asset.
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful ljves, they are accounted for
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment,

Gains and losses upon disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognized
net within “other (income)/expense, net” in the income statement.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to

the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs and maintenance are recognized
in the income statement as incurred.

Items of property, plant and equipment acquired through exchange of non-monetary assets are measured
at fair value, unless the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or the fair value of either the

asset received or asset given up is not reliably measurable, in which case the asset exchanged is recorded
at the carrying amount of the asset given up., '
Freehold land and buildings (properties) were carried in the balance sheet prepared in accordance with

Indian GAAP on the basis of carrying cost (cost model) on 31 March 2015. The compaity has elected to
regard those carrying costs of property as deemed cost at the date of transition, Accordingly, the

Company has not revalued the property at 1 April 2015.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of property, plant and equipment as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Leased assets
ate depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives. The depreciation expense is
included in the costs of the functions using the asset. Land is not depreciated.
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Prajay Developers Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Allamounts in Indian Rupees , except share data and where otherwise stated)

Software for internal use, which is primari ty acquired from third-party vendors and which is an in tegral

part of a tangible asset, is capitalized as part of the related tangible assot. Subsequent costs associated

with mainaining such software are recognized as expense as incurred. The capitalized costs are amortized

over the estimated useful life of the software or the remaining useful life of the tangible fixed asset,

whichever is lower,

3.8 Inventories

Inventories are valued as under:

* Land earmarked for property development is valued at cost. Cost includes land acquisition cost,
registration charges and stamp duty.

» Constiucted properties includes cost of land, premium for development rights, construction costs and
allocated interest and expenses incidental to the projects undertaken by the company.

3.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment, If
any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value in
use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted fo their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit, For the purpese of
impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of

assets (the “cash-generating unit”),

An impairment loss is recognized in the income statement if the estimated recoverable amount of an asset
or its cash-generating unit is lower than its carrying amount. Impairment losses recognized in prior
periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. Goodwill that forms part of the cartying amount
of an investment in an associate is not recognized separately, and therefore is not tested for impairment
separately. Instead, the entire amount of the investment in an associate is tested for impairment as a single
asset when there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate may be impaired.

An impairment loss in respect of equity accounted investee is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of investment with its carrying amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the income
statement, and reversed if there has been a favorable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount,




Prajay Developers Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Ru pees , except share data and where otherwise stated)

3.10  Empleyee benefits

Shori-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for
the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the ob! igation can be estimated reliably.

Defined coniribution plans
The Company’s confributions to defined contribution plans are charged 10 the income statement as and
when the services are received from the em ployees.

Termination benefits

Termmation benefits are recognized as an expense when the Company is demonstrably comm itted,
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment
before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized as an
expense if the Company has made an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer
will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be estimated rel iably.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of other long term’ employee benefits is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and previous periods, That
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Re-measurements are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

3.11 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

3.12  Contingent liabilities & contingent assets

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a pres-ent obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, Where there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or

disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed
continvally and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related
income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs,
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
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3.13 Financial instraments

Initial recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party fo the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on
initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at trangaction price,
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issues of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement
Non-derivative financial insiruments

+ Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held with a business mode!
whose objective to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows, and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

* Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it
is held with a business mode! whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Further in cases where the Company had made an irrevocable election based on its
business model, for its investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent
changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

¢ Investment in subsidiaries and associates

Investment in subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost in the separate financial statements,

¢ Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to short maturity of these instraments.

4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the management
of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered 1o be relevant, Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that

T
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period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

The following are the areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements that the management has
made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Provision and contingent liability

On an ongeing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies.
For contingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in financial
statements. Loss Contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed as
Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are nol
disclosed in the fmancial statements. Gain contingencies are not recognized until the contingency has
been resolved and amounts are received or receivable.

Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting. As at March 31, 2018
management assessed that the useful lives represent the expected utility of the assets to the Company.
Further, there is no significant change in the useful lives as compared to previous year.

Invesiment in equity instruments of subsidiary and associate companies

During the year, the Company assessed the investment in equity instrument of subsidiary and associate
companies carried at cost for impairment testing. These companies are expected to generate positive cash
flows in the future years. Detailed analysis has been carried out on the future projections and the
Cormpany is confident that the investments do not require any impairment,

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its investments in subsidiéu'y companies
and associate companies as of April 1, 20135 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use

that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

As per our report of even date attached

for Madu K Reddy Associates
Chartered Accountants

AFR Bo 40509

CA.Siva Kumar Red
Hyderaph g

Pariner
Membership No: 212128

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 15.05. 2018

poc it

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the standalone financial stalements.

As i As i
Particulars Noie 31 Murch 2018 31 Mol 2077
Assels
Curreni assets _
lnveniories 5 22,15,36,426 22,1536,426
Finangial assels .
Cash and bank balances 6 95,869 LOLAGY
Tota) assets 22,16,32,295 22,16,37,895
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equily share capital 7 21.82,31,900 21,82,31,900
Other equity 8 (13,14,310) (12,22 504
Total equity 21,69,17,590 21,70,09,396
Current lisbilities
Fmancial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities 9 47,14,705 46,28,499
Total liabilities 47,14,70% 46,28 499
Total equity and liabilities 22,16,32,295 22,16,37.495
{14

for and on behall of the Board of Directors of Prajuy Developers Privai

Limited

P Haniketh Reddy
Director
DN: 08094912

o
P, ih}
Ditector
DIN: D80DO7168
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Pariicnlars For the year ended P il YU gnddid
) Noti 3 Mureli 2018 J1 Mares 2017

Crber income - .

Total incoms ~ -

Expenses

Other expensey oLsee 4 23,104

Tolal expense I 91,806 | 23"'1‘@:’

(91,806) {23,104)

Protit belore g
Tax expenses
Current tax
Deferred ax charge

Tolal lax expense
Profit for (he year 91,506y B0

Curvent Tax

Profit / (Loss) for the year (91,806) {23, 1404)
Total comprehensive income for the yeur (91,806) (23,104
Earuings per equity share (ominal value of INR 10} in INR

{0.004) (4.001}

Basic and Dijuted

Sumumary of significant accounling policies 1104

The sccompanying noles are an integral part of the standalone fmancia! statements,
As per our report of even date attached
for Madu K Reddy Associates

Chericred Acconmiants
2gistrat] - Q08 s
ICA[ Firm Rt,gasr)at,orﬂi umber_ g L o .
: ‘ % A~ f
. A ’ P Haniketh Reddy P Pimg

Lirector Director
DIN: 08094912 DIN:0goon 68

Tor and on behalf of the Board of Direstors of Prajay Developers Privre Laiteg

Pariner
Membership No: 212128

Place: Hyderabad
@le: 15.05, 2018
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended Mareh 31, 2018
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees, excepl share datn and where otherwise staled}

a, Equity Share Capital

Profit for the year

MNo. of shares Amouni
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued
At Aprii 1, 2017 2,20,00,000 22,00,00,000
At March 31, 2018 2,20,00,600 22,00,00,000
Equity shares of INR 10 each sabscribed and fully paid-up
Al April 1, 2017 2,18,23,19) 21,82,31,900
At March 31, 2018 2,18,23,190 21,82,31,900
b, Other equity
Reserves and Surplus
[). "L R o Ve
articulars Retained Enranings Total

At March 31, 2017 (12,22,504) (12,22,504)

(91,8006) (91,806}

Balance as of 31 March 2018 (13,14,310)

(13,14,31)

Summary of significant accounting policies llo g

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements,
As per our report of even date attached

for Madu K Reddy Associates
Chartered Accountants

e
FR. No. 0089925 ] o i -
Hyderabag J % /.

P.Haniketh Reddy
Director
DIN: 08094912

CA.Siva Kumar Reddy."T
Partner
Membership No: 212128

Piace: Hyderabad
Date: 15.05, 2018

for and on behalf of Board of Directors of Prajay

— Developers Private Limited
i -~ . ’ﬁ\o\ [

&
P¥Urnima
Director

DIN: 08097168




PRAJAY DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3187 MARCH, 2018

PARTICULARS

Youar ended
31.03.18

Year onded
31.03.17

A. Cash Flow from Operating Actlvities
Net Profit / (Loss} before tax and extraordinary tems

Operating Profit / {Loss) before working capital changes

Adjustments for
Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories

- Decrease / {Increase) in Other Current Assets
Increase / (Decrease) in other current Liabilities

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Net cash used in investing Activities

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
tssue of Equity Share Capital

Proceeds from short term borrowings
Repayment of long term borrowings
Interest paid

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents
Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents

(91,806)
(92,806)
(0}

86,206

{5,600}

(5,600)

1,01,469
95,869

(23,104)

{23,104}

23,000

(104)

(104)

1,041,573
1,01,469

As per our report of even date attached

for Madu K Reddy Associates

C‘harrered Accomtanm

CA.8iva Kumar Reddy, T
Partner
Membership No: 212128 :

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 15.05. 2018

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Prajay
Developers Private Limited

o

P.Haniketh Reddy
Director
DIN: 08094912

C Ck |

P.Purnima
Director
DIN: 08097168
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5 laventories

Langd it Cost
Land and construction work in progress - at cost

& Cush and bank balances

Balances with banks:

- On current accounts
Ciash on hand
Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2018

31 Mareh 2017

22,11,73,150 22,11,73,150
3,63,276 3,63,276
22,15,36,426 22,15,36,426

31 March 2018

31 Maweh 2017

13,982 13,982
81,887 87,187
93,869 E,01,469

e

W
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Notes Forming paet of the fnnneind stateaents
7 Share Caplind

Authorised Share Cagpiin)

220,000,000 (Murcl 31, 201 2.2(,00,00( eyuily shares of Rz, 10 cach

Issued egquity enpital

2,18.23.190 (March 31, 2017: 2,18,23,190) oty shures of Rs, 10 each

Subscribed and fally ppiu-up

208.23,190 (March 31, 2017; 2,1 8,23.190) equity shares of Its. 10 each

{n) Reconciliation of shares vatstasding ut the beginning amd end of
the veporiing year

CAIE ennts an bidian Rupeos, oxoept shure datn god where otherwise sy

3 Mareh 2018

31 Murch 2017

22,00,00,000 22,00,00,000
21,82,31,500 21,8231 900
21,82,31,900 21,82 31,900
21,8231 900 21.42,31,900

31 Muareh 2018

—

3 March 2017

Particulars - -
Nu. of equity Amount No. of equity Amount
shures shares
Orutstanding ai the beginning of the year 2,18,23,190 - 2,18,23,190 21,82.31,000
Issued during the year B _ A N
Outstanding ot the end of the yeir 2,1823,190 - 2,18,23,190 21,82,31,900

() Details of shareholders holding more (ham 5% shares in the

Particulirs

31 Mareh 2018

31 March 2087

No. of equity % holding in the

No. of equity Ve bolding in (he

shares held class shares held class
-Prajay Holdings Private Limited 21823190 100.00 2,18,23,190 100.00

8 Other equity

Retained earnings

Opening balance

Profit/(toss) for the year

Less: Transfers to general reserve
Closing balance

Total other equity

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

(12,22,504) {11,99,400)

(91,806) (23,004)
(13,14,310) (12,22,504)
(13,14,310) {12,22,504)|




Frajny Eagineers Syndicale Limited
Notes forming parl of the Ganncinl staiemenly
(AT nmounis i dian Rupees Lalchs, exeept share dati und where ollorwise sioled)

Y Odhier fisnnchal Habilies
Currend

Prajuy Engineers Syndicote Limiled
Prajuy Holdings Private Limited

Audil Fee Payable

Totad cwrrent Borrowings

31 Mpach 2018

3 Mureh 2097

407,455 3,774,240
42,83,950 A42,42,750
23,300 L1500

47,14, 705 46,28, 499

%8
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

16.Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are caloulated by dividing the profit attributable to oquity holders by the weighted

average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of

Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity
Shares,
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
Profit/(Loss) after tax attributable to shareholders in INR (91,8006) (23,104)

‘Thousands

Weighted :wel:age number of equity shares of INR 10 each 2,18,23,190 2,18,23,190 |
outstanding during the period used in caleulating basic and

dilwed®PS
Earnings per Share ( Basic & Diluted) {0.004) (0.001)

11. Trade Payables — Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises;

The Company has not received any memorandum {as required to be filled by the suppliers with
the notified authority under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006)
claiming their status as micro or small or medium enterprises.

12. Commitments and contingencies

There are no pending litigations that have an impact on the financial position of the company.

13, Auditors’ Remuneration

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
(Rs.) ~ (Rs)
Audit Fee 11800 11500
For Other matters ' - -

14.Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on capital account - Nil,

Wy
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(Al amounts in Indian Rupees, excopt share cata and where otherwise stated)

15.During the year there are no Foreign Exchange earnings or Expenditure in Foreign currency.
16.No managerial remuneration is paid during the year.

17. Prior year comparatives
The figures of the previous year have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to conform with the
current year’s classification.

1 8. Mrs, D. Hymavathi Reddy, one of the shareholders of the company, has filed a company petition CP
No.119/HDB/2018 before the National Company Law tribunal {NCLT), Hyderabad Bench against Parent
company i.e. Prajay Engineers Syndicate Limited and made the company also one of the respondent,
The petitioner made a complaint before the NCLT against the company, the board, its functioning,
appointment / resignations of directors of the board. The matter is pending before the Hon'ble NCLT
and the company has authorised its directors to represent the company before the Hon’ble court and

make submissions, in the best interest of the stakeholders of the company.

As per our report of even date attached _
For Madu K Reddy Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Prajay Developers Private Limited.

Chartered Accountants
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CA Siva Kumar el 'tk j‘ P Haniketh Reddy P.Pinima
Partner "‘lﬁ‘»& — ’f‘;’; Director Director
Membership No:2 1212 Ac= DIN: 08094912 DIN: 08097168

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 15.05.2018
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